Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street

Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100
riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, June 28, 2022 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items and
such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

tn accordance with the Ohio Open Meetings Act and House Bill 51, signed into law on February
17, 2022 and effective immediately through June 30, 2022, this meeting will be live-streamed on
RTA's Board Page www,RideRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the
public. House Bill 51 allows Board members to participate by telephone or video and be
considered present as if in person. it also allows Board members to vote and be counted for the
purpose of determining a guorum while attending by telephong or video,

Members of the public may attend in-person. Based on Centers for Disease Control ("CDC")
guidance to continue to avoid large events and gatherings and Chio Department of Public
Heaalth advice that businesses and other entities may continue to require mitigation measures,
as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and employee health and safety, RTA Board
Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-six (36) people to allow for social
distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff permitted
in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA’s Main Office Building (‘MOB") at 1240 West 6™
Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or maore from other individuals who are not
members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 28, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation settings af this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that
members of the public wear a mask/face covering. If a person entering the building does not
have a mask, one can be provided to them.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (wwy riderta com/board}, on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA's Twilter page.

9:00 A M. Audit, Safety Compliance And Real Estate Committee
« Executive Session Requested - to discuss the results of the 2021 Audit by the
Auditor of the State.

Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

-~ \ e
AT

P
India L. Birdsong ‘h—‘..m)
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



AGENDA
RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, June 28, 2022

Committee Members: Mayor Paul A. Koamar, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Valarie J. McCal|
Mayor David E. Weiss

l. Roll Call

l. Executive Session Requested - to discuss the resulis of the 2021 Audit by the
Auditor of the State.,

I, Adjourn



10.

11,

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, June 28, 2022

9:00 a.m.

Call to order
Rofl Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the May 24, 2022 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

¢, Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee report
« Chair: Ms. Roberta Duarte

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
«  Chair: Mayor Anthony D, Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
«  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
«  Chair; Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
+ Board Ligison: Ms. Robetta Duarte

Ad Hoc Committee reports:

»  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair

= Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Ms. Luz Peliot, Chair
Introduction of new employees and announcement of promations

Introduction of resolutions:

A 2022.52 - Expressing appreciation to Roberta Duarte for her service as a
member of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and extending best wishes for many years to come



RTA Board of Trustees

June 28, 2022
Page 2

2022-53 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-19 with Mott MacDonald, LLC
for Project 19.43 - On-Call Signal Engineering Services - 2022 in an
amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of 24 months (RTA
Capital and/or Development Funds, Engineering & Project Developrment
Department budgat)

2022-54 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-046 with Petrachoice LLC for
the furnishing of antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period of
one (1) year in an amount not to exceed $100,259.25 (General Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget)

2022-55 — Authorizing Contract No, 2022-047 with Alliance National LTD.,
dba DeMilta iron & Metal LTD. for the recycling of scrap metal, as
required, for a period of four years (revenue generating)

2022-56 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-071 with Johnson Controls Fire
Protection, LP to provide fire and safety inspection and testing threugh
the State of Ohio's Department of Administrative Services Cooperative
Purchasing Program, in an amount not to exceed $131,455.26 for a
period of one year, and in an amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for one
option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $262,810.50
(General Fund, Transit Police Department budget)

2022-57 — Amending Section 410.01 Procurement Policies of the Codified
Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

Authority

2022-58 — Amending Section 640.04 of the Codified Rulas and
Regulations and Section 100.04 of the Personnel Policies Employee
Responsibility for GCRTA Property, repealing Section 628.06 Service
Recognition Program of the Codified Rules and Regulations; and
removing Sections 644.15 Service Recognition Program and 640.01
Disctaimer of the Codified Rules and Regulations as duplicates of
Personnel Policies Sections 400.15 Service Recognition Program and
100.01 Disclaimer

2022-59 — Amending Section 640.05 Employee Communications with the
Media of the Codified Rules and Regulations and Section 100.05
Employee Communications with the Media of the Personnel Policies of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2022-60 — Authorizing the fiting of grant applications with the State of
Ohio for State Fiscal Year 2023 financial assistance under all State of

Ohio programs

2022-61 — Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to
enter into an agreement with Medina County to exchange operating funds



RTA Board of Trustees
June 28, 2022

Page 3

15,

18.
17.
18.
19.

20.

21

22,

for Medina County's grant funds and to provide for Medina County to fund
a portion of the cost of the Authority’s 251 flyer route

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a. General Fund Revenue — status as of May 31, 2022 versus 2021 actuals

b. General Fund Revenue — status as of May 31, 2022 versus the 2022
budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts
through June 2022

d. Inventory of Treasury Investrments as of May 31, 2022

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of May 31, 2022

f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through May 31,
2022

g. Report on investment Earnings (cash basis) as of May, 2022

h,  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of May 31, 2022

i.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of May 31, 2022

General Manager's Repart
President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public cornments (2 minutes):
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 26, 2022 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www. RideRTA com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:04 a.m. May 24, 2022
Board Members: LLucas, (Chair), Biasiotta, Duarte, Joyce, Koomar, McCall, Pellot, Weiss, Welch

Not present: Moss

Staff: Benford, Birdsong, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Eeke, Fields, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Talley, Walker-Minor, Young

Public: Bingaman, Gibbons, Kisner Il (S8amuel), Kisner (Kim), Loh, Lowrie, Pinkney-Butts
The meeting was called to order at 9:04 a.m. There were nine (9) board members present.

In accordance with the Ohio Open Meetings Act and House Bill 51, signed into law on February
17, 2022 and effective immediately through June 30, 2022, this meeting will be live-streamed on
RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the
public. House Bill 51 allows Board members to participate by telephone or video and be
considered present as if in person. It also allows Board members fo vote and be counted for the

purpose of determining a quorum while attending by telephone or video.

It was advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of

this Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with,

Oath of Office

Lauren R. Welch took her oath of office. She was appointed by Mayor Justin M. Bibb, City of
Cleveland. Her term runs until March 3, 2025. Ms. Welch is a CMSD alurmni and Clevelander.
She has ridden transit for a long time. She recognized those who are advocating for transit in the
region, She is grateful and hopes that she is making them and the City of Cleveland proud.

Transiteers Resolution/Presentation

President Lucas was contacted by Ronald Kisner who informed him of an exhibit at the Western
Reserve Historical Society featuring a group of Cleveland Transit System (CTS) operators who
performed in a singing group called the Transiteers in the 60's. The Transiteers donated funds to
the community. President Lucas attended the opening of the exhibit. The group was active
during the time his father was a CTS Board member. He and his family attended petformances.
The Transiteers sang at a funeral for one of his wife's uncle, Relatives of Ronald Kisner, Kim
Kisner, Samuel Kisner and Cleveland Historical Society Director Angie Lowrie were prasent,

A, 2022-43 - Expressing congratulations to the family of the a cappella chorus, The
Transiteers, in honor of their new exhibit at the Western Reserve Historical Society
(WRHS}), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms, Pellot

and approved by unanimous vote,



RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 2 of 8

The family expressed their appreciation for the Transiteers and their grandfather. Me encouraged
everyong to see the exhibit. Ms. Lowrie gave details about the group and their legacy. The
exhibit runs through August 1, 2022.

Board Meeting Suspended and Reconvened

9:18 a.m. - President Lucas asked for a motion to suspend the Board meeting to return to the top
of the agenda to commence with the committee meetings. t was moved by Mayor Weiss,
seconded by Ms. McCall and unanimously approved.

10:10 a.m. - it was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and unanimously approved to
reconvene the Board Meeting.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the April 26, 2022 Board Meeting had been
previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1.

Rev. Pamela M. Pinkney — She is concerned and not complaining. She congratulated the
Transiteers. She is waiting for businesses of color to be recognized on vehicles. She
asks to partner with RTA on her anti-profanity, pants puli-up and female cover up initiative,
This would help with Reso 2022-47 on antibullying. She asks that Juneteenth not be
taken lightly, She supports Reso 2022-44.

The caller did not identify themselves. The caller asked when the Waterfront Line would
be back in service. Mr. Schipper said they wili go out for construction later this year. The
target is to have it up prior to the 2023 Cleveland Browns season. She asked why the #11
goes from downtown and the #32 is gone and will the 48A be put back on Tarkington and
South Miles. Dr, Caver said the #11 was redesigned. The #11 was connected to the old
#32 line to provide rides from the city to the suburbs and jobs along that line. Buses who
historically had portions of the city now have a longer route with a one seat ride. They
have discussed the #48A with the community. This route probably won't come back, but
the route is captured by the #50, Rev. Lucas added that work is needed on the bridge for

safety reasons.

Mr. Rodriguez — He is concerned with the safety at the W. Bivd Cudell Station. There
needs to be more security. The #18 needs to run 30 minutes instead of an hour.

The caller did not identify themselves. The caller agreed there should be more security at
transit stations. Dr. Caver understands the concern. Transit Police visits the stations, and

we have a robust camera system.

Airric Stewart ~ Dr. Caver misrepresented the truth to the caller by giving a partial truth
and not acknowledging the rest of the route not serving as it should be. The #50 sarves
2.4 miles of the previous 48A. After that, it goes in a direction where the 48A didn't go.
RTA increased the 48 to run every 30 minutes, which a majority of the route serves north
of Miles Avenue, where the 48A was serving. The Board's responsibility is to oversee



RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 30f 8

management. He showed Eric Johnson hour by hour in a 15-hour period where the #50
and #48 runs and where the #50, #48 and #48A should run.

6. Dontez Tayior — He asked why restrooms are not available at stations. Dr. Caver said the
janitorial staff cleans the elevators. Transit systems do not recommend restrooms
because of safety reasons like drug use, etc. RTA would not be able to ensure safety for

the bathrooms.

7. Robert Winn — (webform) This comment relates to the Quarterly Management Report as
well as the performance management presentation. According to the 1Q 2022 Quarterly
Management report, breakdowns resulting in delays of 5 minutes or more have increases
vs Q4 2021 and Q1 2021. Furthermore, customer satisfaction as measured by the number
of complaints has declined. How are these measures captured in the scorecard? Also,
how is the number of complaints measured now that "Ride Happy" cards haven't been on

vehicles for months?

8. Chris Sfocking — (webform) RTA needs to look into text alerts for service outages. RTA
had a Commuter Alerts text message service but was discontinuad in Fall of 2017. With all
due respect to RTA operators and employees. RTA service, including rail service was not
operational on MLK Day, January 17th and February 18th, when the NBA All-Star game
was in town. That is unacceptable. Snowstorms happen, rail service needs to be running.
You left hundreds of riders trying to get to work, medical appointments, or to buy groceries
stranded without service or notice of the outage. The fact that the board has had no public
discussion about the causes of these service outages and how to prevent them in the
future is a major issue. You need a plan to reach riders when service disruptions happen.
The minimum you can do is send a text message letting people know service is down.
Also installing more displays and real-time countdown clocks with current service
information will help those without text messages at bus shelters and stations. Not
everyone has a smariphone and data plan to access Transit App. And even if they did
many times alerts are not consistently posted on the app. It is hard to remove gloves
during a snowstorm to use a smart phone when it is 20 degrees outside even if you have
a data plan. Add real-time screens at bus stops and text message communication, Work
with staff to develop a plan to not leave riders stranded. Show us that you care about the

riders.

Transit Police Chief Jones said the promotion ceremony was held last week. [t was the first time
it was held at RTA, The exemplary officer for 2021 was awarded. She asked if all board
members could attend the next ceremony. She thanked the staff for their support. TP also
participated in the Police Memorial parade.

Commitiee Reports

There were no committee reports.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

Theare were no reports from the CAC.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports




RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022

Page 4 of 8

There were no reports.

tntroduction of New Emplovees/Promotions

New Hires:

Christopher Anderson, Operator

Samuel Davis, Operator

Gall Fisher, HRIS Manager

Pamela Black, Operator

Al Edwards, Operator

Horrace Foster, Operator

Margaret Colon-Ramos, Talent Acquisition Business Partner
Lynda Evans, Talent Acquisition Business Parter
Zamir Gardner, Operator

10 Ronald Geis, Operator

11. Bonita Kimbrough, Operator

12. Donald Sims, Laborer

13. Zharia Horn, Operator

14. Jonathan Miller, Electrical Equipment Maintainer
15. Walter Small, Operator

16. Sharon Jenkins, Director of Marketing & Communications
17. Calvin Myers, Operator

18. Timothy Smith, Operator

19. Shawn Stamper, Operator

20. Robert Walker, Operator

CONOORLN S

Promotions:

Chris Anderson, Sergeant

Timothy Hassing, Sergeant

Robert Cummings, Sergeant

Khisa Hudson, Lieutenant

Robert Fleig, Public information Officer
Grant Kersh, Construction Engineer
Richard Kopp, Lieutenant

George Schrieiner, Lisutenant

Charles Wilson, Lieutenant

LoNOOAWND =

Introduction of Resolutions:
A. 2022-43 was presented earlier in the agenda.

B. 2022-44 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2022-053 with Statewide Ford Lincoln, for the
purchase and delivery of two (2) 2022 Ford F-150 First Responder vehicles and
one (1) Police Interceptor Utility Unmarked vehicle for a total price not to exceed
$162,735.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms, McCall, seconded by Ms. Peliot and
approved by unanimous vote.

C. 2022-45 - Authorizing an extension and increase to Contract 2016-140 with
Passport Labs, Inc., fka Passport Parking, Inc. for the purchase of additional



RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 50ofB

Mobile Ticketing Solution Services in an amount not to exceed $56,420.00
(General Fund, Innovation & Technology Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Koomar and approved by
unanimous vote.

D. 2022-46 — Amending Chapter 242 General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority, the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor
Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

E. 2022-47 - Adopting Sections 200.05 “Anti-Bullying and Prevention of Abusive
Conduct” and 600.12 “Lactation Policy” of the Personnel Policies of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which was moved by Ms.
McCali, seconded by Ms. Peliot and approved by unanimous vote.

F. 2022-48 — Appropriating the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's
expenditures or outlays for the Fiscal Year (“FY") 2023 Capital Improvement
Budget, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Pellot
and approved by unanimous vote.

G. 2022-49 - Approving an addendum to the Collective Bargaining Agreement
covering conditions of employment with the Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor
Council, Inc., the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor
Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

H. 2022-50 — Memorializing the occasion of the Authority adopting and observing the
Juneteenth National Holiday, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCali,
seconded by Ms. Peliot and approved by unanimous vote.

[. 2022-51 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-016 with MP2 Energy NE LLC to provide
electricity supply requirements, for a period of three years in a projected amount
not to exceed $7,308,000.00 (General Fund, Rail District Depariment budget) and
in a projected amount not to exceed $2,967,000.00 (General Fund, Office of
Management and Budget Department budget) for a total projected contract amount
not to exceed $10,275,000.00, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall,
seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote,

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report,
He showed data from the five largest metropolitan statistical areas (MSA) in Ohio which include
Cuyahoga, Lorain, Medina, Lake and Geauga counties. Ceolumbus, Cincinnati and Dayton is also
shown. Over the last three years, the height of the labor force was February 2020. Afier the
Pandemic, we are inching up to those levels. Columbus MSA has surpassed that level. In
February 2020, 1.087 million people were employed. March 2022, 1.092 million people were

employad.

YTD ridership through 2022 is about 5.6 million. April ridership was 16% above the April 2021
levels. Passenger fares for April 2022 was nearly $2 million which is 16,1% lower than April
2021. These numbers are being presented on a cash basis, so the difference is a timing issue,



RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 6 of 8

Revenue is 18.9% lower than budget. YTD passenger fares is 22% higher than the same period
in 2021. Mobile ticketing totaled nearly $449,000 or 34.3% higher than April 2021. Sales Tax
has been the greatest source of unrestricted revenue for the general fund. May 2022 receipts
which is based on the February 2022 activity is 5.3% higher compared to the previous May and
3.2% higher than budget. Fifteen of the 23 categories were positive in May.

Motor Vehicles & Watercraft is 1.2% higher. On-Line Sales is 19.1% higher. Regular & Statewide
Sales is 11.0% higher. The $81.3 million that remain to be drawn dawn which was budgeted for
2022 in ARP funds have been fully drawn down in April.

General Manager/CEO Report

Dr. Caver, Chief Operator Officer, presented on behalf of the General Manager, CEO. The team
has been busy advocating for transit investment in the community. On May 5, GM/CEQ India
Birdsong mef with U.8. Secretary of Transportation Pete Buttigieg and U.S. Congresswomen
Shontel Brown in conjunction with Tri-C. The meeting highlighted the nexus between
transportation and education and new strategies organizations can use for workforce
development. They discussed the HJA funding, which is the largest infusion of public funds. Ms.
Birdsong facilitated a fownhall meeting with the speakers. Board member Valarie McCall and
President Lucas were in attendance.

Transit Police held a promotion ceremony last week. President Lucas, Ms. Birdsong and Dr.
Caver gave remarks. Mayor Weiss was also in attendance. On Aprit 25, Ms. Birdsong spoke at
Cleveland.com's Mentoring Monday. She presented to hundreds of women about balancing
personal obligations and career. RTA held a job fair at Graffiti HeArt art complex. Board Member
Luz Pellot works there. Ms. Pellot was excited about hosting the event and said it was a great
turnout. She looks forward to future events. Dr. Caver welcomed Lauren Welch to the Board.
She was appointed by Mayor Justin Bibb, City of Cleveland. The Transiteers CTS performance
group was honored today. Their exhibit is on display at the Western Reserve Historical Society.
The executive team held a retreat last week at Tri-C. The team took personality assessments
and worked on problem solving, team building, communication brainstorming. The group
partnered with Tri-C and Boys and Girls Club to build bikes.

WTS recognized RTA as the Employer of the Year at their Annual Conference in Seattle,
Washington, Maribeth Feke, Director of Programming and Planning received the award on
behalf of RTA. A brief thank you video from RTA was played. Ms. Birdsong added that RTA has
been involved in the community and country in a major way.

President's Report

Rev. Lucas thanked the leadership at RTA. He welcomed Ms. Welch to the Board.

Public Comments

1. Rev. Pamela M. Pinkney ~ A light rail operator is concerned about the homeless. The
homeless need assistance. They don't need to be incarcerated or put in the hospital. The
Superior Rapid Station still needs work. The adopted shelters need to be maintained.

She is concerned about fare not being collected on the Red Line. She requested another
meeting with Ms. Birdsong. She wants to attend the next Mentoring Monday event. She
asked about people of color working in Media and Communications and working in




RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 7 of 8

administration and leadership. She also asked about people of color involved in
Mentoring Mondays.

2. Chris Martin - In the quarterly management report, RTA said that breakdowns resulfing in
2 minutes or more delays are increasing, Also, customer satisfaction measured by
complaints is declining. He asked how these are measured on the scorecards since Ride
Happy Ride Free cards are not on the vehicle anymore. He asked how the capital
improvements funded under the Infrastructure Bill will increase access to transit and if
Transit Police will sign a MOU with the City of Cleveland police. And is RTA will agree to
only cite under the amended Cleveland ordinance as it moves through the legislative
process and decline to cite under the State of Ohio statue.

Dr. Caver said the customer service survey gives us a barometer on the aggregate
customer satisfaction. We still have a customer complaint system. We measure
boardings per complaints and measure the timing of how we get back to customers. The
Ride Happy Ride Free program does not exist anymore. RTA Transit Police must police
the entire county and will do that under the State code. The elevator at Superior Station is
operating. TP is working with the homeless. We partner with organizations like the
Homeless Coalition and the County to provide services.

3. Loh-In the past, a lot of things were sacrificed because of a tight budget. A lot of things
have become hit or miss due to a lack of miscommunication. The retreat will give the
board a chance to balance the situation and not let the budget control the service, RTA
should serve the entire community no matter their economic situation.

4. Evangelist Anderson — She asked why certain buses don't run on weekends. Dr. Caver
said with the NextGen redesign, we increased Saturday and Sunday setvice for batter
connectivity. She said the #40 needs to run every 20-30 minutes on the weekend.

5. Airric Stewart - He repeated his comments from earlier about the 48A. He said his
recommendations provide more efficient service to work, school and healthcare facilities.

6. Dontez Taylor — He asked why the #8 runs hourly when the #11 ran every 15 minutes.

Executive Session Requested

11:11 a.m. - Rev. Lucas asked for a motion to consider the appointment, employment, dismissal,
discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official, It was moved
by Mayor Koornar, seconded by Ms. McCall. There were nine (2) ayes, and none opposed.
President Lucas said there may be some business after the executive session.

12:09 p.m. - Mayor Koomar made the motion to come out of executive session, seconded by Ms.
Peliot. There were nine (9) ayes, and none opposed.

President L.ucas said General Manager, CEQ India Birdsong recommended the hiring of Janet
Burney as the new General Counsel for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.
President Lucas asked for a motion to approve the hiring of Janet Burney. It was moved by
Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Koomar. There were nine (8) ayes for approval, and none
opposed. Ms. Burney thanked the Board for their approval and President Lucas for his support
and encouragement. She thanked Ms. Birdsong for selecting her and for her confidence in the



RTA Board of Trustees
May 24, 2022
Page 8of 8

Legal Division. This continues her commitment to public service. She understands the
importance of RTA to the community and region. She thanked Sheryl King Benford for her 20+
years of excellent service. She acknowledged the hard work of the Legal team. Ms. Birdsong
congratulated Janet and thanked the Board and staff for their support.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 28, 2022, in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This
meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the
meeting date, The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:15 p.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-562

EXPRESSING APPRECIATION TO ROBERTA DUARTE FOR HER SERVICE
AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GREATER
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND EXTENDING BEST
WISHES FOR MANY YEARS TO COME

WHEREAS, Robearta Duarte has served as & member of the Board of Trusteas of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, having been appointed by County Executive
Armond Budish on April 27, 2021: and

WHEREAS, Roberta Duarte has been a faithful and dedicated Board Trustee during her
tenure, serving on several committees and as Board Liaison to the Community Advisory
Committee and as the Chair of the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee; and

WHEREAS, during her tenure as a member of the Board of Trustees, Roberta Duarte
was a strong advocate for workforce development and comrunity engagement, and
demonstrated her unwavering commitment to local, regional and state collaboration in order to
achieve the best possible outcomes far all; and

WHEREAS, Roberta Duarte has performed with great diligence, insight and passion in
serving the citizens of Cuyahoga County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustess of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees hereby extends its sincere appreciation to
Raberta Duarte for her dedicated service to the Authority and her community.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees express their gratitude to Roberta
Duarte for her diligence in the performance of her responsibilities to the residents of Cuyahoga

County.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees offars its bast wishas to Roberia Duarte on her
future endeavors,

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100-
326
01-12-22

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT, PROQJECT 19.43 ~ ON-CALL SIGNAL ENGINEERING 2022-53

VENDOR:  MOTT MACDONALD, LLC nitiator

AMOUNT:  AMOUNT NTE $450,000 FOR 24 MONTH PERIOD Development

SERVICES - 2022 Date:
June 23, 2022

Engineering & Project

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval [1 Review/Comment [ information Only [0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for On-Call
Signal Engineering Services for a period of 24 months.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION; This project will provide professional signal expertise with
design and technical support services for highway-rail grade crossing warning systems,
wayside & cab signal systems and traffic control systems. It will atso provide assistance with
regulatory compliance, training and specification development. The consultant will be required
to prepare plans, specifications, cost estimataes, construction duration estimates, and to provide

construction support services,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposal ("RFF") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Nineteen interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. These
services were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing proposal from that firm, and negotiates price only
with that firm. Should the Authority determine that an agreement could not be reached with the
rmost qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most
qualified firm. In this instance, negotiations were held with Mott MacDonald, LLC, the first
ranked firm, and an acceptable price was reached.

Mott MacBDonald, LLC has successfully completed projects for the GCRTA, Chicago Transit
Authority, WMATA and the Port Authority of Allegheny County, among others.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
to be fair and reascnable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. Matt MacDaonald, LLC has committed to achieve the 5% DBE participation goal
established for this procurament, which is equivaient to $22,500.00, and has agreed to utilize
the following certified DBE firms: Raul V. Bravo & Associates (Hispanic-owned), Denise's
Flagging & Construction (Female-owned), and Geo Trans (Hispanic-owned) in amounts that
wilt be a function of the specific nature of the on-call service required.

POLICY IMPACT: Does Not Apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to 100% Local funds and FTA Grants to be determined, in an amount not to exceead
$450,000.00 for a period of 24 months. This is the budgeted amount for this project.



Staff Summary & Commaents 2022-53

On-Call Signal Engineering Services - 2022
Page 2

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority withaut the
technical expertise of a professional signal engineering firm to supplement the resources of the
Authority's Engineering and Project Management Divigion.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the June
14, 2022 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the offer from Mott MacDonald, LLC be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legaf form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

7
e .
").-i':;/’ - /”"‘? s L

et JET e
General Manager, Chief ExeclifivgOfficer
LA




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-53

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-19 WITH MOTT MACDONALD, LLC FOR
PROJECT 19.43 — ON-CALL SIGNAL ENGINEERING SERVICES - 2022 IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $450,000.00 FOR A PERIQD OF 24 MONTHS (RTA
CAPITAL AND/OR DEVELOPMENT FUNDS, ENGINEERING & PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires professional signal expertise with design and
technical support services for highway-raill grade crossing warning systems, wayside & cab
signal systems and traffic control systems; and

WHEREAS, the Authority also requires assistance with regulatory compliance, training
and specification developrment, preparation of plans, specifications, cost estimates, construction
duration estimates, and construction support services; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Mott MacDonald, LLC, with an office located at 18013
Cleveland Parkway Drive, Suite 200, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, to perform said services was
received on March 30, 2022 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Mott MacDeonald, LLC has agreed to perform the required
services in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of 24 months; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the oflfer of Mott
MacDonald, LLC to be the most advantageous to the Autharity and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Mott MacDonald, LLC to provide signal
engineering design and technical support services under Project 19.43 — On-Call Signal
Engineering Setvices - 2022, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Mott MacDenald, LLC for the performance

of said services,

Saction 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital and/or RTA
Development Funds, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to 100% Local funds and FTA Grants to be determined, in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a period of 24 months,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable faws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Mott MacDonald, LLC will attempt to exceed the 5% minimum DBE goal assigned
to this procurement.



Resolution No. 2022-53
Page 2

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adaption.

Adopted: June 28, 2022

Prasident

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 s .
TITLE/DESCRIFTION: Resolution No .
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF ANTI-FREEZE, AS SPECIFIED AND AS | 2022-54

REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR Date
June 23, 2022

VENDOR: PETROCHOICE LLC Initiator- Floet

Management

AMOUNT: AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $100,258.25 Department

ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval {1 Review/Comment {1 Information Only [} Other

1.0 PURPQOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will aliow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract for antifreeze is necessary for the maintenance
of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles operated by the Authority.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (IFB}) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Fifteen (15) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) responsive bids were received on May 25, 2022 as

follows:
Companies Antifreeze Anticipated Unit Cost Per Total Cost
‘ Usage (Gallons) Gallon
PetroChoice, Bulk 20,000 $4.55 $ 91,000.00
LLC
Drum 2,035 $4.55 $ 9,259.25
Total Cost RO $100,259.25 |
Northeast T Bulk 20,000 $7.08 $ 141,600.00
Lubricants, Lid.
Drum 2,035 $8.08 % 16,442.80
“Total Cost o 1$158,042.80 |
FPC Lubricants Bulk 20,000 $4.73 $ 94,600.00
Drum 2,035 $6.03 3 12,271.05
Total Cost $106,871.05

The bid of PetroCheice LLC has been determined by the Procurement Department to be the
lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Depariment has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.



Staff Summary & Comments
Antifresze
Page 2

2022-54

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $100,259.25 for a period of one
(1) year. The bid price is approximately 7% below the budget estimate,

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would require the Authority to buy
lesser guantities at a higher price.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of PetroChoice LLC be accepted and
the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into
a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

M
(éenerai Manager, Chief Execyfive Dfficer



RESOLUTION NO, 2022-54

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-046 WITH PETROCHOICE LLG FOR
THE FURNISHING OF ANTIFREEZE, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED,
FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXGEED
$100,259.25 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires the furnishing of antifreeze for the routine
maintenance of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the bid of PetroChoice LLC, located at 8500 Clinton Road #1101 B,
Brooklyn, Ohio 44144, for the furnishing of antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period
of one (1) year was raceived on May 25, 2022 at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount
not to exceed $100,259.25; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of PetroChoice
LLC, to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends acceptance
theraof by the Board of Trustees of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFQRE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of PetroChoice LLC for the furnishing of antifreeze, as specified
and as required, for a period of one (1) year be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter info a contract with PetroChoice LLC for the furnishing of
antifreeze, as specified and as required, for a period of ane (1) year.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to excead $100,259.25 for a period of one
(1) year,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees: bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greatar Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that PetroChoice LLC will attempt to exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted. June 28, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100-

326

01-12-22

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: | Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RECYCLING OF SCRAP METAL, AS REQUIRED 2022-55

VENDOR:  ALLIANCE NATIONAL LTD, DBA DEMILTA IRON June 23, 2022

AMOQUNT: REVENUE GENERATING FOR FOUR YEARS

Date:

& METAL LTD. Initiator; Fleet

Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval {1 Review/Comment [} Information Only I Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

2.0
6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPRE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
recycling of its scrap metal, as required, for a period of four (4) years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has a need to dispose of scrap metals that
accumulate as a result of regular business operations. The majority of the excess scrap metal
consists of defective radiators, machine turnings, inoperable electric motors, electric cable and
wiring harness. The Authority generates approximately 200 gross tons of scrap metal per year.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the locat newspapers, Twelve (12) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation package. One (1) responsive bid was received on May 25, 2022,
The Basis of Award is a responsive bid from a responsible bidder with the lowest discount off
the published Cleveland Market price, as published in the American Metal Market ("AMM”")
Scrap Price Bulletin. The bid price reflects a plus or minus the AMM bi-weekly metal cost. The
Bid Summary is included as Attachment A-Bid Summary. The Procurement Department has
detarminead that Alliance National Ltd., dba DeMilta lron & Metal Ltd. is a responsible hidder.

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND. The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on revenue generating contracts,

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Proceeds from the recycling of the various metals shall be deposited in
the General Fund.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would cause delays in the Authority's
ability to dispose of excess scrap metals that could impair maintaining a clean and safe working

environmaent,

RECOMMENDATHON: It is recommended that the offer of Alliance National Ltd., dba DeMilta
Iron & Metal Lid. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.



Staff Summary & Comrments
Recycling of Scrap Metal
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENT: Attachment A Bid-Summary

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

7 -

?X'enera! Manager, Chief Exé:guﬁ'fi'a Officer

2022-55



SUQ} OB/ SUDIZ-1 § SUCIg-| | SUCEQL-Z | SUOlC-¢ [ SUolg-l SUol -7 SUQY B-4 SUGY sbesn
QEL-GLL [eruuy pelew)isy
uo} ssoub 0ot {+} 1 1003 g q| o ql 00°6:% (-} | 005es (4} BT
00°06% {-) (+) | 00'0${+} | 00'08{+} | 0O0$ (+) | SO0$(+) | g Ul BlINag eqd
1 PI [sudlen souBly
1o} ssoub G2 0% 02°0% (35°0% FAE N £5es 5LLS D0°GLES o005wPs
jad 00 0SYS
ZE0CIPEISO
adid pasod WY
ql od gl 454 O f8g 'gf I8d qf isd O 194 U0} Uo] Uo}
SS0L0) iad $S0.C) Jad SS0US) iBd
EE ST EE SOOI | LNUHEUNpY | SNid Slap Jaddon si0jEipey Duuing {e1apm
Ss3juels | ouIoeg no L# auiyoep | AnesH L)
Lol deswg

13

“1BppIg sAIsUcdsss pue 8|qisucdsal B WOy Lajs)ng sold deisg (INnY,) 1938 [BIop Uedusiwy o4 ul paysiand
se sod Jasely puelsasi) paysignd auUi 4O JUNCOSIP 1SSMO] SU) L0 POSEq PEPJEME 3G M JOBIUOS aY] DIEMY JO SISEg

ASVIRRNNS QI8 -V INJWHDVLLY




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-55

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-047 WITH ALLIANCE NATIONAL LTD.,
DBA DEMILTA IRON & METAL LTD. FOR THE RECYCLING OF SCRAP
METAL, AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR YEARS (REVENUE
GENERATING)

WHEREAS, the Authority has a recurring need to dispose scrap metal that accumulates
from the operations of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43(k) of the Ohio Revised Code permits the sale or disposition
of property by public auction or competitive procedures; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Alliance National Ltd., dba DeMilta fron & Metal Ltd., located at
3950 Ben Hur Avenue, Willoughby, Ohic 44094, for the collection, removal and recycling of
scrap metals, as required, for a period of four (4) years was received on May 25, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Alliance
National Ltd., dba DeMilta iron & Metal Ltd. to be a responsive bid from a responsible bidder
and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ghia:

Section 1. That the offer of Alliance National Ltd., dba DaMiita ron & Metal Ltd. to
provide for the collection, removal and recycling of the Authority’s scrap metal, as required, for a
period of four (4) years, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Alliance National Lid., dba DeMilta fron &
Metal Ltd, to provide for the collection, removal and recycling of scrap metal, as required, for a
period of four (4} years.

Section 3. That the proceeds of such sales shall be deposited in the General Fund of
the Authority.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements, and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this reseolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 28, 2022

Prasident

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 )
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FIRE AND SAFETY INSPECTION AND TESTING 2022-56
VENDOR:  JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTION, LP ?f,,fz' 23, 2000

AMOUNT:  NTE $131.455.25 FOR A ONE-YEAR PERIOD AND NTE | [nitiator:

$131,455.25 FOR ONE OPTION YEAR, FOR A TOTAL Transit Police
CONTRACT NTE $262,910.50. Department

ACTION REQUEST;
Approval {1 Review/Comment [ Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

PURPQOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for fire and
safety inspection and testing, in accordance with state and locat regulations, for a period of one

year with one, one-year option for renewal,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires independent third-party inspection
and testing of its fire and safety system, This Authority-wide system is comprised of electrical
and mechanical components that require annual inspection, testing, and certification, and
ongoing service and maintenance. This action is necessary to meet the state and city fire
codes which require that a complete annual safety system inspection, including semi-annual
and quarterly inspections and testing, be completed in 2022 and 2023,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Section 306.43(H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides
political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in contracts
negotiated and executed by the State of Ohio, Department of Adminisirative Services,
Cooperative Purchasing Program, for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment, and
materials. The Board of Trustees has authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
to utilize such contracts by Resolution No. 1990-089,

The State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program includes a contract with Johnson Controls
Fire Protection, LP under State Term Contract No. MMA7482. Said contract will aliow the
Authority to obtain the needed services for an amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for a period
of one year, and in an amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for one aption year, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $262,010.50. The price established is the result of a competitive
solicitation process and is offered to qualifying government entities. This price is the budgeted
amount for this procurement,

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Depariment has determined that
the pricing provided by Johnson Controls Fire Protection, LP is fair and reasonable for the

Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROLUND: The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the State
Cooperative Purchasing program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



2022-56

Staff Sumimary & Comments
Fire and Safety Inspection and Testing
Fage 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Transit Police
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for a period of one year, and in
an amount not to exceed $131 45525 for one option year, for a total contract amount not to

exceed $262,910.50 for the two-year period.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this proposal will leave the Authority without
the ability to obtain required inspection, testing, cerification, and maintenance for the fire and
safety system. Failure to obtain these services may subject the Authority to citations for
violation of the Ohio Fire Code and/or City of Cleveland fire and safety ordinances.

RECOMMENDATION: |t is recommended that the offer of Johnson Controls Fire Protection,
LP be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract,

ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

M:F:y“'"’/‘
ol . prar
i :

eneral Manager, Chief ﬁ.ié?:ﬁti e Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-56

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-071 WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE
PROTECTION, LP TO PROVIDE FIRE AND SAFETY INSPECTION AND TESTING
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO'S DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$131,455.25 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR, AND IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$131,455.25 FOR ONE OPTION YEAR, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $262,910.50 (GENERAL FUND, TRANSIT POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority is required to test and maintain the fire and safety system in
accordance with the state and local regulations; and

WHEREAS, such services are available from Johnson Controls Fire Protection, LP,
located at 17295 Foltz Industrial Parkway, Suite G, Strongsvilie, Ohio 44149, to provide
equipment and services through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services,
Cooperative Purchasing Program; and

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio with the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by
the State of Ohio, Depariment of Administrative Services, Office of State Purchasing, for the
purchase of supplies, services, equipment and certain materials; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43{H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code permits a regional transit
authority to participate in said program; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program in Resolution 1990-069; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has deemed it to be inthe
best interest of the Authority to utilize the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program for
obtaining fire and safety inspection and testing from Johnson Controls Fire Protection, LP for a
periad of one year, with one option year, and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of
Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Johnson Controls Fire Protection, LP to provide fire and
safety inspection and testing for a period of one year, with ona option year, be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Johnson Controls Fire Protection, LP to
provide said services and with authority to exercise the option year.

Section 3. That the said contract is entered into under the authority granted by Ohio
Revised Code Section 306.43(H){(4) and under the terms of the State of Ohio Coopearative

Purchasing Program.



Resolution Mo, 2022-56
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Transit Police
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for a period of one year, and in an
amount not to exceed $131,455.25 for one option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$262 910.50 for the two-year period.

Section 5. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon funding for future years, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and ail applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Altest:

Secretary-Traasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESGRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022.57
AMENDING SECTION 410.01 PROCUREMENT POLICIES OF THE Date:
CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER June 23. 2022
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY - :
initrator:
Finance
AcTioN REQuESsT:
Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only (0 Other
1.0 PURPQOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Section 410.01, Procurement Policies of the

2.0

3.0
4.0
5.0

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code") of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION. The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resoclution 1989-176. The Code Book is now undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the current structure and
operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment updates Section 410.01 to delegate to
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer the power to extend the terms of contracts within
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's dollar change order authority.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will ensure that the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer has the day-to-day authority to extend the terms of contracts.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would resultin a
policy that requires Board of Trustees approval for routine day to day operations.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the June 14, 2022 Committee of the
Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. It is
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Section 410.01.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

.-’;
.-“..‘.

: T

-~ General Manager, ChietExettive Officer




410.01

Attachment A to Staff Summary

PROCUREMENT POLICIES.

(a) The Procurement Policies of the Authority are as follows:

1)

@)

3)

(4)

Purpose. These Procurement Policies identify the regulations and
processes that govern all Authority personnel involved in the
procurement and contract administration process. The Policies cover
the entire range of procurement activities and their requirements are
binding on all Authority personnel.
Scope of Policy. Except as otherwise specified herein, all purchases
and dispositions of equipment, materials, goods and services to or
by the Authority involving either an expenditure of public funds or
revenue from Authority assets whether by sale, lease, rental or
otherwise shall be governed by these Policies. The general
requirements herein shall apply except as altered or excluded for
specific types of procurements.

Exclusions. The following activities are excluded from this Policy:

A. Acquisition or disposition of any rights in real property,
excepting contracts with professional consultants or brokers in
connection therewith;

B. The sale of debt securities or sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback
transactions, except for contracts with professional consultants
or brokers in connection therewith;

C. Payments for items mandated by law, regulation, or
agreements other than procurement contracts entered into by
the Authority;

D. Training, professional development and other routine
administrative expenses which are specifically identified in
the Authority's budget;

E. Purchases or reimbursement to employees for travel or similar
expenses 1ncurred on behalf of the Authority under the
Authority's other policies and procedures;

F. The designation of eligible depositories for the Authority's
active, interim and inactive funds pursuant to Ohio R.C. Chapter
135; and

G. Action regarding employee-related matters under the
Personnel Code, excepting contracts with professional
consultants in connection therewith.

Governance. As a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, the

Authority is governed by the applicable portions of the Ohio Revised

Code. The primary governance for procurement actions is Ohio R.C.

306.43. As a third-party grantee of the Federal government, the

Authority is also governed by applicable Federal laws and




®)

(6)

(7)

®)

regulations. The primary Federal governance for procurement

activities is FTA Circular 4220.1, as it may be amended or replaced.

The FTA Best Practices Procurement Manual, Federal Acquisition

Regulations and other sections of the Ohio Revised Code, while they

may or may not be binding on the Authority, shall be used for

guidance to the extent matters covered herein are not addressed by
governing laws or regulations.

Structure of Procurement Department. The Procurement

Department shall have a sufficient degree of autonomy within the

Authority to function effectively as part of a check and balance

system governing Authority acquisitions and dispositions.

Procurement ethics. No Authority employee, officer, agent or board

member may participate in the selection, award, or administration of

a contract supported with FTA assistance if that individual, his or

her immediate family member, partner or an organization that

employs or is about to employ any of the foregoing has a financial or
other interest in a firm being considered or selected. "Immediate
family" shall have the same meaning as defined in the Authority's

Code of Ethics.

No Authority employee, officer, agent, or board member shall

accept anything of value from a party who is doing or seeking to do
business with the Authority that could have a substantial and
improper influence upon that employee, officer, agent or board
member, in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code and the
Authority's Code of Ethics.
Organizational conflicts of interest. Procurements shall be
conducted with full and open competition to the greatest extent
possible. No undue geographical, economic or technical restrictions
shall be imposed. A vendor deemed to possess an unfair competitive
advantage or to possess a bias preventing it from impartially
performing the work or services on behalf of the Authority shall be
precluded from award of contracts.

Delegations of Authority.

A. The Board hereby delegates to the CEO,—General
Manager/Secretaryv-TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief
Executive Officer of the Authority the following responsibilities:
1. Authorize purchases, sales, dispositions, and other

procurement  actions which, by Federal or State
requirements, do not require formal solicitation or approval
by the Board;

2. Approve all funding encumbrances and authorizations to
proceed with solicitation for acquisitions and dispositions
of goods, equipment, and services for or by the Authority;

3. Upon authorization by the Board, execute contracts




exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in
value;

Terminate any contract if deemed to be in the best interest
of the Authority;

Approve change orders that extend the term and/or increase
the price ofen contracts not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000), in a net amount that does not cause
the total amount of any such contract to exceed one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), and approve change
orders on other contracts in a net amount not to exceed
the following limits: one hundred thousand dollars
($100,000) for contracts up to one million dollars
($1,000,000); the lesser of ten percent or two hundred fifty
thousand dollars ($250,000) for contracts between one
million dollars ($1,000,000) and five million dollars
($5,000,000); and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000)
for contracts over five million dollars ($5,000,000). The
Board may, by resolution, vary these limits for particular
contracts or projects; and

Re-delegate any of the powers granted herein, provided,
however, that the CEO,—GeneralManager/Seeretary-
TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer shall
retain responsibility for all actions taken as a result of re-
delegation of authority hereunder.

The Board hereby delegates to the CEO,—General Manager/
Seeretary-TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer

and the Authority's Director of Procurement the following
responsibilities:

1.

O

Authorize all purchases, sales, dispositions and other
procurement actions which, by Federal or State
requirements or these Procurement Policies, do not require
formal solicitation or approval by the Board;

Execute contracts not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000) in value or otherwise requiring Board
approval;

Advertise for procurements as required by law or regulation
or when otherwise deemed to be in the best interest of the
Authority;

Cancel procurements;

Determine the lowest responsive and responsible bidder;
Determine when acceptance of an offer resulting from a
negotiated proposal is in the best interest of the Authority;
Reject any or all bids or proposals when it is determined to
be in the best interest of the Authority;



8. Determine whether an exception to competition 1is
applicable, in accordance with Ohio R.C. 306.43;

9. Review, respond to, negotiate and settle protests, claims
and disputes related to procurement actions or contracts;
and

10. Re-delegate any of the powers granted herein, provided,
however, that the CEO,—General ManagerfSeeretary-
TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer shall
retain responsibility for all actions taken as a result of re-
delegation of authority hereunder.

(9) Procurement planning, specifications, and scopes of services. The
initiating department shall be responsible for identifying and
justifying its procurement needs, as well as preparing specifications
and/or a scope of services for the Procurement Department.
Specifications should identify the Authority's minimum needs and
avoid restrictive provisions such as identification of name brands to
the greatest extent possible. Specifications must be approved by
the head of the initiating department, the Safety Department,
when applicable, the Director of Procurement, and any others
designated by the Director of Procurement, prior to issuance. The
Initiating department is also responsible for preparing an estimate
of the cost of the item or service.

(10) Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. The Authority shall work to
ensure the participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises
(DBEs) in its procurements, as well as contractor compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. The Authority shall use its best
efforts to encourage fair and representative participation of DBEs on
procurements, either as prime contractors or as subcontractors.
Moreover, the Authority shall determine the opportunity for DBE
participation on all procurements in the amount of twenty-five
thousand dollars ($25,000) or more and, where qualified DBEs are
1dentified, solicitations for such procurements shall include at least
one DBE among the contractors solicited.

(11) Debarment. The Authority shall not award contracts to firms that
are debarred by the State or Federal governments. Debarment by
other government entities may be considered in determining a
contractor's responsibility but shall not necessarily preclude award
to the debarred vendor.

(12) Change orders. Change orders are contract amendments altering
the scope, price or schedule of the original contract. Approval of
change
orders shall be in accordance with the delegations of authority
prescribed in this chapter. No work under a change order may be
authorized prior to such approval, except upon the written direction




of the CEO-General Manager/Seeretary-TreasurerGeneral Manager,

Chief Executive Officer. Change orders determined to be cardinal
changes to the contract are prohibited. Cardinal changes are
changes which alter the essential nature, quantity or scope beyond the
reasonable contemplation of the parties at the time of contract
execution, or which result in a final product substantially different
than that for which the Authority originally contracted.

(13) Protests, claims and disputes. The Authority shall review, process,
and adjudicate procurement protests, claims, and disputes in the
manner prescribed by applicable Federal and/or State regulations.
The Authority's procedure for handling protests, claims, and disputes
shall be contained in the Authority's Procurement Manual and made
available to vendors upon request.

(14) Procurement types for formal contracts. For formal contracts (those
for which the Board has not delegated its purchasing authority and
any others so designated by the CEOGeneral Manager/Seeretary-
TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer), the Authority
shall procure and dispose of personal property as prescribed by
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. The Authority may
use any type of contract that is consistent with applicable laws and
regulations.

(15) Small purchases. Purchases reasonably estimated not to exceed
the small purchase limit of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000)
may be procured informally, provided that a record is maintained
consistent with applicable laws and regulations. Price or rate
quotations shall be obtained from an adequate number of qualified
sources to permit a reasonable comparison consistent with the
nature of competitive negotiation within the given circumstances.

(16) Contract pricing. The Authority may utilize firm fixed price or fixed
unit price not-to-exceed contracts for sealed bid procurements as
well as negotiated procurements. Such contracts may allow price
escalation based on actual costs or a generally recognized index,
provided that the escalator has a defined upper limit. The Authority
may also use a cost plus fixed fee contract or any other type of
contract permitted by applicable laws or regulations; however, for
negotiated procurements, it may not use a cost plus percentage fee
type of contract. The Authority may use indefinite quantity or
indefinite delivery contracts where appropriate but may not use
an indefinite quantity and indefinite delivery contract. The
Authority may use a time and materials type of contract only if no
other form is suitable and if the contract contains a
not-to-exceed ceiling. The Authority may utilize progress payments
to the extent consistent with law and regulation, provided that it
obtains or secures value consistent with the amount paid. The




Authority shall not make advance payments unless specifically
authorized by the Director of Procurement or the CEO,General
Manager/—Seeretary-TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive
Officer.

(17) Sealed bid procurements. The Director of Procurement may direct
that sealed bids be invited. If less than two responsive bids are
received for a sealed bid solicitation, the Director of Procurement, in
this single bid situation, may either (1) negotiate price with the
responsive bidder or (2) cancel the solicitation.

(18) Competitive negotiated procurements. The Director of Procurement
may direct that competitive negotiated proposals be solicited.
Competitive negotiated procurements must be conducted in a manner
that preserves the integrity of the procurement process. To the extent
permitted by law, regulation or court decision, the evaluation of
proposals shall be conducted in a confidential manner, and all
confidential or proprietary information shall be held confidential.

(19) Two-step procurements. The Director of Procurement may direct that
a two-step procurement process be utilized. This process shall consist
of a negotiated technical proposal followed by a sealed bid from those
firms whose technical proposals are acceptable.

(20) Non-competitive procurements. The Director of Procurement may
prescribe that a non-competitive procurement is justified based
on applicable laws and regulations. If any such procurement exceeds
the small purchase authority prescribed herein, Board approval is
required. Contracts entered into on the basis of a non-competitive
procurement must be in the best interest of the Authority, and the
price shall be fair and reasonable, as determined by the Director of
Procurement.

(21) Design services. Architectural and engineering services, value
engineering services, and incidental services related thereto, as
defined in 40 U.S.C. Sec. 541 et seq. (Brooks Act), shall be conducted
as negotiated procurements, except that selection shall be made of the
most technically qualified firm without consideration of price. Price
shall be negotiated with the selected firm. If agreement cannot be
reached with the most qualified firm, the process is repeated with
the second most qualified firm, continuing until agreement is
reached, or the pool of technically acceptable firms is exhausted, at
which point the procurement must be cancelled.

(22) Design/build services. To the extent permitted by law and regulation,
the Authority may solicit the services of a single firm or entity to both
design and build a construction project. Such solicitations shall be
conducted in the manner prescribed by the Ohio Revised Code. If
such procedure violates the provisions of Federal law or regulation,
design build services may not be used in projects involving Federal




funds.

(23) Construction services. Solicitations for construction, improvement
or repair of facilities shall be conducted as sealed bid procurements.
To the extent required by law or regulation, solicitations shall require
that the award shall be made to the lowest responsive bid from a
responsible bidder. The contractor must conform to the prevailing
wage requirements defined in Ohio R.C. Chapter 4115 if no Federal
funds are involved or the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a et seq.)
and the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 276¢ et seq.) if Federal funds are
involved.

(24) Incentive payments and liquidated damages. The Authority may,
under appropriate circumstances, utilize incentives to encourage
extraordinary vendor performance or, alternately, provide for
liquidated damages to protect the Authority from losses due to vendor
nonperformance. It may not impose financial penalties that are
punitive in nature. Liquidated damages must be calculated and
documented prior to the issuance of the solicitation on the basis of the
anticipated actual loss to the Authority resulting from vendor non-
performance.

(25) Bid guaranty. A bid guaranty shall be required for all contracts
for construction, alteration, or repair of any public building or other
public improvement in the manner described by the Ohio Revised
Code. The Authority may require a bid, performance and/or
payment guaranty when it is determined, by the Director of
Procurement, to be in the Authority's best interest. The bid guaranty
shall be required as directed by the Director of Procurement, upon the
advice of the Risk Management Department. The Director of
Procurement may authorize the reduction of any bond supplied for
the rendering of services or the supplying of materials to the extent
permitted by the Ohio Revised Code.

(26) Rolling stock. The Authority may procure rolling stock by either
negotiated procurement or sealed bid. Rolling stock shall be defined
to include transit vehicles such as buses, vans, cars, railcars,
locomotives, trolley cars and buses, and ferry boats, as well as
vehicles used for support services. Solicitations for rolling stock shall
require compliance with all applicable standards regarding
dimensions, weight, accessibility and safety. Unless specifically
authorized by the CEO— General—Manager/Seeretary-
TreasurerGeneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer, the Authority
shall not procure rolling stock that has not been tested in accordance
with the Code of Federal Regulations, as applicable. The Authority
shall conduct pre-award and post-delivery audits as required by the
Code of Federal Regulations.

(27) Electronic procurements and purchasing cards. The Authority may




utilize electronic means, to the extent consistent with legal and
regulatory requirements, to conduct any procurement defined
herein. Employees and officers of the Authority designated by the
Board may use purchasing (credit) cards.

(28) Disposition of property. The Authority may sell personal property,
including capital equipment and surplus or obsolete parts and
supplies, by sealed bid, public auction or online auction. The
Authority may otherwise dispose of property in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. Trade-in of used equipment
towards the purchase of new equipment shall also be permitted.
Sale of capital assets whose fair market value is estimated to exceed
the small purchase limit shall be authorized by the Board. Sale of
Federally funded capital assets that have not exceeded their useful
life as established by the Federal Transit Administration shall be
authorized by the Board.

(Res. 2017-102. Passed 11-21-17.)




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-57

AMENDING SECTION 410.01 PROCUREMENT POLICIES OF THE CODIFIED
RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the
Authority codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Section
410.01 should be updated to delegate to the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer the

power to extend the terms of confracts within the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer's dollar change order authority.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Section 410.01, Procurement Policies is hereby amended to read as
specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adaption.

Attachment: A. Saction 410.01

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



410.01

Attachment A to Resolution

PROCUREMENT POLICIES.

(a) The Procurement Policies of the Authority are as follows:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

Purpose. These Procurement Policies 1dentify the regulations and
processes  that govern all Authority personnel invelved m the
procurement and contract administration process. The Policies cover
the entive range of procurement activities and their requirements are
binding on all Authorty personnel.
Scope of Policy, Except as otherwise spectfied herein, all purchases
and dispositions of equipment, matenals, goods and services to or
by the Authority involving erther an expenditure of public funds or
revenue from Authority assets whether by sale, lease, rental or
otherwise shall be governed by these Policies. The general
requirements herein shall apply except as altered or excluded for
specfic types of procurements.

Exclusions. The following activities are excluded from this Policy:

A. Acquisition or disposition of any nights in real property,
excepting contracts with professional consultants or brokers in
connection therewith;

B. The sale of debt securities or salelleaseback or lease/leasebaek
transactions, except for contyacts with professional consultants
or brokers in connection therewith;

C. Payments for items mandated by law, regulation, or
agreements other than procurement contracts entered into by
the Authority;

D. Training, professional development and other routine
administrative expenses which are specifically identified in
the Authority's budget;

E. Purchases or reimbursement to employees for travel or similar
expenses incurred on behalf of the Authority under the
Authority's other policies and procedures;

F. The designation of eligible depositories for the Authority's
active, interim and inactive funds pursuant to Qhio R.C. Chapter
135; and

G. Action regarding emplovee-related maftters under the
Personnel Code, excepting contracts with professional
consultants in connection therewith.

Governance. As a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, the

Authority is governed by the applicable portions of the Ohio Revised

Code. The primary governance for procurement actions 1s Ohio R.C.

306.43. As a third-party grantee of the Federal government, the

Authority is also governed by applicable Federal laws and




(7)

(8)

regulations. The primary Federal governance for procurement
activities is FTA Circular 4220.1, as it may be amended or replaced.
The FTA Best Practices Procurement Manual, Federal Acquisition
Regulations and other sections of the Ohio Revised Code, while they
may or may not be hinding on the Authority, shall be used for
guidance to the extent matters covered herein are not addressed by
governing laws or regulations.

Structure _of  Procurement Department. The Procurement
Department shall have a sufficient degree of autonomy within the
Authority to function effectively as part of a check and halance
system governing Authority acquisitions and dispositions.
Procurement ethics. No Authority employee, officer, agent or board
member may participate in the selection, award, or administration of
a contract supported with FTA assistance if that individual, his or
her immediate family member, partner or an organization that
employs or is about to employ any of the foregoing has a financial oy
other interest in a firm being considered or selected. "Immediate
family" shall have the same meaning as defined in the Authority's
Code of Ethics.

No Authority employee, officer, agent, or board member shall
accept anything of value from a party who is doing or seeking to do
business with the Authonty that could have a substantial and
improper influence upon that employee, officer, agent or board
member, 1n accordance with the Ohioc Revised Code and the
Authority's Code of Ethies.

Orgamizational conflicts of interest. Procurements shall be
conducted with full and open competition to the greatest extent
possible. No undue geographical, economic or techmical vestrictions
shall be imposed. A vendor deemed to possess an unfair competitive
advantage or to possess a nas preventing it from impartially
performing the work or services on behalf of the Authority shall be
precluded from award of contracts.

Delegations of Authority.

A. The Board hereby delegates to the General Manager, Chief

Executive Officer of the Authority the following responsibilities:

1. Authorize purchases, sales, dispositions, and other
procurement  actions which, by Federal or State
requirements, do not require formal solicitation or approval
by the Board;

2. Approve all funding encumbrances and authorizations to
proceed with solicitation for acquisitions and dispositions
of goads, equipment, and services for or by the Authovity;

3. Upon authorization by the Board, execute contracts
exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in




value;

Terminate any contract if deemed to be in the best interest
of the Authority;

Approve change orders that extend the term and/or increase
the price of contracts not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000), in a net amount that does not cause
the total amount of any such contract to exceed one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), and approve change
orders on other contracts in a net amount not to exceed
the following limits: one hundred thousand dollars
($100,000) for contracts up to one million dollars
($1,000,000); the lesser of ten percent or two hundred fifty
thousand dollars ($250,000) for contracts between one
million dollars ($1,000,000) and five million dollars
($5,000,000); and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000)
for contracts over five million dollars ($5,000,000). The
Board may, by resolution, vary these limits for particular
contracts or projects; and

Re-delegate any of the powers granted herein, provided,
however, that the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
shall retain responsibility for all actions taken as a result
of ve-delegation of authority hereunder.

The Board hereby delegates to the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer and the Authority’s Thrector of Procurement
the following responsibilities:

1.

Authorize all purchases, sales, digpositions and other
procurement actions which, by Federal or State
requirements or these Procurement Policies, do not require
formal solicitation or approval by the Board;

Execute contracts not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000} in value or otherwise requiring Board
approval;

Advertise for procurements as required by law or regulation
or when otherwise deemed to he 1n the best interest of the
Authority;

Cancel procurements;

Determine the lowest responstve and responsible bidder;
Determine when acceptance of an offer resulting from a
negotiated proposal 1s in the best interest of the Authority;
Reject any or all bids or proposals when it is determined to
be in the best interest of the Authority;

Determine whether an exception to competition is
applicable, in accordance with Ohio R.C. 306.43;

Review, respond to, negotiate and seitle protests, claims



and disputes related to procurement actions or contracts;
and

10. Re-delegate any of the powers granted herein, provided,
however, that the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
shall retain responsibility for all actions taken as a result
of re-delegation of authority hereunder.

(9) Procurement planning, specifications. and scopes of services. The
initiating department shall be responsible for identifying and
justifying its procurement needs, as well as preparing specifications
and/or a scope of services for the Procurement Department.
Specifications should identify the Authority's minimum needs and
avoid restrictive provisions such as identification of name brands to
the greatest extent possible. Specifications must be approved by
the head of the 1mtiating department, the Safety Department,
when applicable, the Director of Procurement, and any others
designated by the Director of Procurement, prior to issuance. The
initiating department 1s also responsible for preparing an estimate
of the cost of the 1tem or service.

(10) Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. The Authority shall work to
ensure the participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises
(DBEs) in its procurements, as well as contractor compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. The Authorty shall use its best
efforts to encourage fair and representative participation of DBEs on
procurements, either as prime contractors or as subcontractors.
Moreover, the Authority shall determine the opportunity for DBE
participation on all procurements in the amount of twenty-five
thousand dollars ($25,000) or more and, where qualified DBEs are
1dentified, solicitations for such procurements shall include at least
one DBE among the contractors solicited.

are debarred by the State or Federal governments. Debarment by
other government entities may be congidered 1n determuining a
contractor's responsibility but shall not necessarily preclude award
to the debarred vendor.

(12) Change orders. Change orders are contract amendments altering
the scope, price or schedule of the onginal contract. Approval of
change
orders shall be in accordance with the delegations of authority
prescribed 1n this chapter. No work under a change order may be
authorized prior to such approval, except upon the written direction
of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer. Change orders
determined to be cardinal changes to the contract are prohibited.
Cardinal changes are changes which alter the essential nature,
guantity or scope beyond the reasonable contemplation of the parties

4



(13)

(15)

(16)

(17)

at the time of contract execution, or which result in a final product
substantially different than that for which the Authovity originally
contracted.

Protests, claims and disputes. The Authority shall review, process,
and adjudicate procurement protests, claims, and disputes in the
manner prescribed by applicable Federal and/or State regulations.
The Authority's procedure for handling protests, claims, and disputes
shall be contained in the Authority's Procurement Manual and made
available to vendors upon request.

for which the Board has not delegated its purchaging authority and
any others so designated by the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer), the Authority shall procure and dispose of personal property
as prescribed by applicable State and Federal laws and regulations.
The Authority may use any type of contract that is consistent with
applicable laws and regulations.

Small purchases. Purchases reasonably estimated not to exceed
the small purchase limit of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000)
may be procured informally, provided that a record is maintained
consistent with applicable laws and regulations. Price or rate
quotations shall be obtained from an adequate number of qualified
sources to permit a reasonable comparison consistent with the
nature of competitive negotiation within the given circumstances.
Contract pricing. The Authority may utilize firm fixed price or fixed
unit price not-to-exceed contracts for sealed bid procurements as
well as negotiated procurements. Such contracts may allow price
escalation based on actual costs or a generally recognized index,
provided that the escalator has a defined upper limat. The Authority
may also use a cost plus fixed fee contract or any other type of
contract permitted by appheable laws or regulations; however, for
negotiated procurements, 1t may not use a cost plus percentage fee
type of contract. The Authority may use indefinite quantity or
indefinite delivery contracts where appropriate but may not use
an indefinite quantity and indefinite delivery contract. The
Authority may use a time and materials type of contract only if no
other form is suitable and if the contract contains a

not-to-exceed ceiling. The Authority may utilize progress payments
to the extent consistent with law and regulation, provided that it
obtaing or secures value consistent with the amount paid. The
Authority shall not make advance payments unless specifically
authorized by the Director of Procurement or the General Manager,
Chief Executive Qfficer.

Sealed bid procurements. The Director of Procurement may direct
that sealed bids be invited. If less than two responsive bids are

o



received for a sealed bid solicitation, the Director of Procurement, in
thus single bid situation, may either (1) negotiate price with the
responsive idder or (2) cancel the solicitation.

(18) Competitive negotiated procurements. The Director of Procurement
may direct that competitive negotiated proposals be solicited.
Competitive negotiated procurements must be conducted in 2 manner
that preserves the integrity of the procurement process. To the extent
permitted by law, regulation or court decision, the evaluation of
proposals shall be conducted in a confidential manner, and all
confidential or proprietary information shall be held confidential.

(19) Twe-step procurements. The Director of Procurement may direct that
a two-step procurement process be utilized. This process shall consist
of a negotiated technical proposal followed by a sealed bid from those
firms whose technical proposals are acceptable.

(20) Non-competitive procurements. The Director of Procurement may
prescribe that a non-competitive procurement 1s justified based
on applicable laws and regulations. If any such procurement exceeds
the small purchase authority prescribed herein, Board approval 1s
required. Contracts entered into on the basis of a non-competitive
procurement must be in the best interest of the Authority, and the
price shall be fair and reasonable, as determined by the Director of
Procurement,

(21) Design services. Architectural and engineering services, value
engineering services, and incidental services related thereto, as
defined in 40 U.5.C, Sec. 541 et seq. (Brooks Act), shall be conducted
as negotiated procurements, except that selection shall be made of the
most technically qualified firm without consideration of price. Price
shall be negotiated with the selected firm. If agreement cannot be
reached with the most qualified firm, the process is repeated with
the second most qualified firm, continuing until agreement is
reached, or the pool of technically acceptable firms is exhausted, at
which point the procurement must be cancelled.

(22) Design/bwld services. To the extent permatied by law and regulation,
the Authority may solicit the services of a single firm or entity to both
design and build a construction project. Such solicitations shall be
conducted in the manner prescribed by the Ohio Revised Code. If
such procedure violates the provistons of Federal law or regulation,
design build services may not be used in projects involving Federal
funds.

(23) Construction services. Solicitations for construction, improvement
or repair of facilities shall be conducted as sealed bid procurements.
To the extent required by law or regulation, solicitations shall require
that the award shall be made to the lowest responsive bid from a
regponsible bidder. The contractor must conform to the prevailing

6



wage requirements defined i Ohio R.C. Chapter 4115 if no Federal
funds are involved or the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.5.C. 276a et seq.)
and the Copeland Act (40 U.8.C. 276¢ et seq.) if Federal funds are
involved.

(24) Incentive pavments and hquidated damages. The Authority may,
under appropriate crcumstances, utilize incentives to encourage
extraordinary vendor performance or, alternately, provide for
liguidated damages to protect the Authority from losses due to vendor
nonperformance. It may not mmpose financial penalties that are
punitive in nature. laquidated damages must be calculated and
documented prior to the 1ssuance of the solicitation on the basis of the
anticipated actual loss to the Authority resulting from vendor non-
performance,

(25) Bid guaranty. A bid guarvanty shall be required for all contracts
for construction, alteration, or repair of any public building or other
public improvement in the manner described by the Ohio Revised
Code. The Authonty may require a bid, performance and/or
payment guaranty when 1t 1s determuned, by the Director of
Procurement, to be in the Authority's best interest. The bid guaranty
shall be required as directed by the Director of Procurement, upon the
advice of the Risk Management Department. The Director of
Procurement may authorize the reduction of any bond supphed for
the rendering of sexrvices or the supplying of materials to the extent
permitted by the Ohio Revised Code.

(26) Rolling stock. The Authority may procure rolling stock by either
negotiated procurement or sealed bid. Rolling stock shall be defined
to include transit vehicles such as buses, vans, cars, railears,
locomotives, trolley cars and buses, and ferry boats, as well as
vehicles used for support services. Solicitations for rolling stock shall
require compliance with all applicable standards regarding
dimensions, weight, accessibility and safety. Unless specifically
authorized by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, the
Authority shall not procuare rolling stock that has not been tested in
accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, as applicable. The
Authority shall conduct pre-award and post-debvery audits as
required by the Code of Federal Regulations.

(27) Electronic procurements and purchasing cards. The Authority may
utilize electronic means, to the extent consistent with legal and
regulatory requirements, to conduct any procurement defined
herein. Employees and officers of the Authority designated by the
Board may use purchasing (credit) cards.

(28) Disposition of property. The Authority may sell personal property,
including capital equipment and surplus or obsolete parts and
supplies, by sealed bid, public auction or online auction. The




Authority may otherwise dispose of property in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. Trade-in of used eguipment
towards the purchase of new equipment shall also be permitted.
Sale of capital assets whose fair market value is estimated to excead
the small purchase limit shall be authorized by the Board. Sale of
Federally funded capital assets that have not exceeded their useful
life as established by the Federal Transit Administration shall be
authorized by the Board.

(Res. 2017-102. Passed 11-21-17))



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIFTION: Reasolution Na.:

2022-58

AMENDING SECTIONS 640.04 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date’
REGULATIONS AND 100,04 OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES June 23. 2022
EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY: REPEALING ™ '
SECTION 628.06 SERVICE RECOGNITION PROGRAM OF THE Initiator:

CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS: AND REMOVING SECTIONS | Human Resources
644.15 SERVICE RECOGNITION PROGRAM AND 640.01 DISCLAIMER
OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS AS DUPLICATES OF
PERSONNEL POLICIES SECTIONS 400,15 SERVICE RECOGNITION
PROGRAM AND 100.01 DISCLAIMER

ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval 0 Review/Comment 7 Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
50

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will (1) amend Sections 640.04 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations ("Code") and 100.04 of the Personnel Policies, Employee Responsibility for
GCRTA Property, (2) repeal Section 628,06 Service Recognition Program of the Code; and (3)
remove Sections 644.15 Service Recognition Program and 640.01 Disclaimer from the Code as
duplicates of Personnel Policies Sections 400.15 Service Recognition Program and 100.01
Disclaimer.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1988, pursuant to Resolution 1989-178. The Code Book is now undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the current structure and
operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment will (1) add language to the policies
regarding employee responsibility for GCRTA property that advises employees that violation of
these policies may also violate state criminal statutes; (2) repeal an obsolete provision related
to service recognition; and (3) remove two policies from the Code that duplicate policies that
are already contained in the Personnel Policies.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND. Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of this resolution will bring the Code up to date with current
practices.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would result in a
policy that remains out of date.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the June 14, 2022 Cominittee of the
Whote meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees, lLis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Code Book Section §40.04
B. Red-line of proposed amendments to Personnel Policies Section 100.04
C. Red-line of proposed repeal of Code Book Section 628.06
D. Red-line of proposed removal of Code Book Section 644.15
E. Red-line of proposed removal of Code Book Section 640.01



Staff Summary & Cornments
Human Resources Provisions

Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

-~ -

/ General Managef Chief E?&lﬂ%@f*ﬁcer

2022-58



Attachment A to Staff Summary

640.04 EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY.

(a) GCRTA property and facilities are public property purchased with
public funds and are intended solely for use in furtherance of the Authority's
operations. No GCRTA employee is authorized to lend, borrow, take, use, sell, or
otherwise dispose of GCRTA property or facilities for personal or private benefit or
gain. GCRTA property or facilities include but are not limited to: all equipment
both revenue and non-revenue; tools; machinery; materials and supplies, office
supplies, furniture; computers; fax machines; copy machines; printers: phones;
offices; mail room and mail services; electronic devices such as cell phones, 1Pads,
pagers, etc; and scrapped items.

(b) Any employee found loaning, borrowing, taking, er—using, selling o
otherwise disposing of GCRTA property;—eguipment; or facilities for hi—S/—hei"—GWH

personal or ether—private wusebenefit or gain,—and —any —employee—found
misappropriating or-misusing GCRTA property; will be subject to disciplinary

action, up to and including termination.

(¢) Anyemplovee found misappropriating or misusing GCRTA property will
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

B)d) All employees are hereby placed on notice that violation of this policy
may also violate criminal statutes of the State of Ohio and that such violations may
be reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency(ies).

(Res. 2001-119. Passed 8-21-01; Res. 2013-95. Passed 9-17-13. Res. 2022-XXX.
Passed XX-XX-22.)




Attachment B to Staff Summary

100.04 EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY

GCRTA property and facilities are public property purchased with public funds and are intended
solely for use in furtherance of the Authority’s operations. No GCRTA employee is authorized to
lend, borrow, take, use, sell, or otherwise dispose of GCRTA property or facilities for personal or
private benefit or gain. GCRTA property or facilities include but are not limited to: all equipment,
both revenue and non-revenue; tools; machinery; materials and supplies, office supplies;
furniture; computers; fax machines; copy machines; printers; phones; offices; mail room and
mail services; electronic devices such as cell phones, iPads, pagers, etc., and scrapped items.

Any employee found loaning, borrowing, taking, er-using, selling or otherwise disposing of
GCRTA property—eqmpmen% or faC|I|t|es for hls#her—ew&personal or ether-private usebenefit or
# will be subject to

d|s0|pI|nary actlon up to and including termination.

Any employee found misappropriating or misusing GCRTA property will be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

All employees are hereby placed on notice that violation of this policy may also violate criminal
statutes of the State of Ohio and that such violations may be reported to the appropriate law
enforcement agency(ies).

(Ref. Code Book Section 640.04)




Attachment C to Staff Summary




Attachment D to Staff Summary

2014A Replacement



Attachment E to Staff Summary




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-58

AMENDING SECTION 640.04 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS
AND SECTION 100.04 OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES EMPLOYEE
RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY; REPEALING SECTION 628.06
SERVICE RECOGNITION PROGRAM OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS; AND REMOVING SECTIONS 644.15 SERVICE RECOGNITION
PROGRAM AND 640.01 DISCLAIMER OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS AS DUPLICATES OF PERSONNEL POLICIES SECTIONS
400.15 SERVICE RECOGNITION PROGRAM AND 100.01 DISCLAIMER

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1988-176, the Board of Trustees of the
Authority codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures, and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that (1) Sections
640.04 of the Caodified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) and 100.04 of the Personnel
Policies, Employee Responsibility for GCRTA Property should be amended; (2) Section
628.06 Service Recognition Program of the Code should be repealed; and (3) Sections
644.15 Service Recognition Program and 640.01 Disclaimer should be removed from the
Code as duplicates of Personnel Policies Sections 400.15 Service Recognition Frogram
and 100.01 Disclaimer.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Section 640.04 Employee Responsibility for GCRTA Property of the
Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) is hereby amended to read as specified in
Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That Section 100.04 Employvee Responsibility for GCRTA Property of tha
Personnel Policies is hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment B hereto.

Section 3. That Section 628.08 Service Recognition Program of the Code is hereby
repealed in its entirety.

Section 4. That Sections 644,15 Service Recognition Program and 640.01 Disclaimer
are hereby rermoved from the Code and retained as sections 400.15 and 100.01 of the
Personnel Policies.

Section 5. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.
Attachments: A, Code Book Section 640.04 Employse Responsibility for GCRTA Property
B. Personnel Policy Section 100.04 Employee Responsibility for GCRTA
Property

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Resolution

640.04 EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY.

{a) GCRTA property and facilities are public property purchased with
public funds and are intended solely for use in furtherance of the Authority's
operations. No GCRTA employee is authorized to lend, borrow, take, use, sell, or
otherwise dispose of GCRTA property or facilities for personal or private benefit or
gain. GCRTA property or facilities include but are not limited to' all equipment
both revenue and non-revenue; tools; machinery; materials and supplies, office
supplies, furmture; computers; fax machines; copy machines; printers; phones;
offices; mail room and mail services; electronic devices such as cell phones, iPads,
pagers, ete; and scrapped items.

(b} Any employee found loaning, borrowing, taking, using, selling or
otherwise disposing of GCRTA property or facilities for personal or private benefit
or gain will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination,

(¢) Anyemployee found misappropriating or misusing GCRTA property will
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

(d) All employees are hereby placed on notice that vielation of this policy
may also violate criminal statutes of the State of OChio and that such violations
may be reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency{ies).

(Res. 2001-119. Passed 8-21-01; Res. 2013-95. Passed 9-17-13. Res. 2022-XXX.
Passed XX-XX-22.)



Attachment B to Resolution

100.04 EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY FOR GCRTA PROPERTY

GCRTA property and facilities are public property purchased with public funds and are intended
solely for use in furtherance of the Authority's operations. No GCRTA employee is authaorized to
lend, borrow, take, use, sell, or otherwise dispose of GCRTA property or facilities for personal or
private benefit or gain. GCRTA property or facilities include but are not limited to: all equipment,
both revenue and non-revenue; tools; machinery, materials and supplies, office supplies,
furniture; computers; fax machines; copy machines; printers; phones; offices; mail room and
mail services; electronic devices such as cell phones, iPads, pagers, etc., and scrapped items.

Any employee found loaning, borrowing, taking, using, selling or otherwise disposing of GCRTA
property or facilities for personal or private benefit or gain will be subject to disciplinary action,
up o and inciuding termination,

Any employee found misappropriating or misusing GCRTA property will be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

All employees are hereby placed on notice that violation of this policy may also violate criminal
statutes of the State of Ohio and that such violations may be reported to the appropriate law
enforcement agency(ies).

(Ref, Code Book Section 640.04)



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22

1 TITLE/DESCRIPTION: ‘ : Resolution No.:
2022-59

AMENDING SECTION 640.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH Date:
THE MEDIA OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS AND June 23, 2022
SECTION 100.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA "
OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND Initiator:
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY Administration &

External Affairs

ACTION REQUEST: _
Approval [ Review/Comment O information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Section 640.05 Employee Communications
with the Media of the Codified Rules and Regulations ("Code”) and Section 100.05 of the
Personnel Policies of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

DESCRIPTION/AUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now undergoing a
comprehensive review and update s0 that the Code will conform to the current structure and
operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment will update the policies to replace
“Office of Media Relations" with "Public Information Officer.”

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will update the policies to reflect the current title
of the Public Information Officer,

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this rescolution. Not adopting this resolution would resuit in the
Code Book and Personnél Policies remaining out of date.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the June 14, 2022 Committee of the
Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. Itis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of proposed amendment to Code Book Section 640.05
B. Red-line of proposed amendment to Personnel Policies Section 100.05

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
avaiilability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

- o ", .{‘::;:?ﬂ . !
E i Dy

= i "
eneral Manager, Chief@f@uﬁﬂe Officer




Attachment A to Staff Summary

640.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA.
Any media request of an employee (e.g. on-camera interview or interview by
a newspaper reporter) shall be referred to the Office—of Media—RelationsPublic

Information Officer for an official response.
(Res. 2001-119. Passed 8-21-01. Res. 2022-XXX. Passed XX-XX-22.)




Attachment B to Staff Summary

100.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA

Any media request of an employee (e.g. on-camera interview or interview by a newspaper
reporter) shall be referred to the Office-of-Media-RelationsPublic Information Officer for an
official response. (Ref. Code Book Section 640.05)




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-59

AMENDING SECTION 640.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE
MEDIA OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS AND SECTION
100.06 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA OF THE
PERSONNEL POLICIES OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the
Authority codified the resolutions estabiishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Section
640.05 Employee Communications with the Media of the Codified Rules and Regulations
and Section 100.05 of the Personnel Policies should be updated to reflect the current title of
the Public Information Officer.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1, That Section 640.05 Employee Communications with the Media of the
Codified Rules and Regulations is hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment A
hereto.

Section 2. That Section 100.05 of the Personnel Policies is hereby amended to read as
specified in Attachment B hereto.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Saction 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachments: A. Code Book Section 640.05 Employee Communications with the Media
B. Personnel Policy Section 100.05 Employee Communications with the Media

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Resolution

640.056 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA.

Any media request of an employee (e.g. on-camera interview or interview by
a newspaper reporter) shall be referred to the Public Information Qfficer for an
official response.
(Res. 2001-119. Passed 8-21-01. Res. 2022-XXX., Passed XX-XX-22))



Attachment B to Resolution

100.05 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA

Any media request of an employee (e.g. on-camera interview or interview by a newspaper
reporter) shall be referred to the Public Information Officer for an official response. (Ref. Code

Book Section 640.05)



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.;

26022-60
FILING OF GRANT AFPLICATIONS WITH THE STATE OF QHIQ FOR STATE Data;
FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE June 23 2002
Initiator: Finance

ACTION REQUEST,
K Approval [ Raview/Comment 17 information Only 0 Other

1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to submit grant applications, to enter
into funding agreements with, and to accept funds frorn the State of Chio for eligible transit
projects. This resolution is for the State Fiscal Year 2023, which is July 1, 2022 — June 30,

2023.

20 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The State of Ohio will make funds available during
SFY2023 under various programs. GCRTA will apply for financial assistance frorn the State

of Ohio for eligible transit projects.

State of Ohio financial assistance programs include, but are not limited to:

ODOT Urban Transit Program (UTR)

QODOT Discretionary capital Program

QDOT Qhio Transit Partnership Program (OTRP)
ODOT Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (QOEPA)

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT. This action is consistent with the policy stated at Section 460.04{d) of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to take
advantage of all avallable State and Federal Grant programs, including State of Ohio Urban
Transit Program granis and Federal Highway Administration Programs, as weil as the programs
of the Federal Transit Administration.

6.0  ECONOMIC IMPACT. Funding available through the State of Ohio may be up to 80%-100%
of the total project cost,

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Do not submit grant applications. This would exclude the Authority from
utilizing funding available through the State of Ohio to tha Claveland Urbanized Area for

transportation improvements.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: itis recommended that the resolution authorizing the filing of
applications for financial assistance from the State of Chio be approved.

8.0  ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

o 1 #“"ﬁ- P
‘ o T g g S A W S ‘:“""'.'r
"7’Genara Manager, Chief Executive Officer



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-60

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF GRANT APPLICATIONS WITH THE STATE OF
OHIO FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2023 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER ALL
STATE OF OHIO PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through its State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2023 financial assistance
programs, will make funds available to assist public transportation systems in Chio: and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is the primary transit operatar
in Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is providing transit service and
abserving all federal and state rules under all State of Chio programs,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to file
applications, as required, and to execute contracts on behalf of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority with the State of Chio for financial assistance {including by fransfer of highway
funds) under all State of Ohio programs.

Section 2, That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute and
file such applications, any assurances or any other documentation required by the State of Ohio
under the financial assistance programs.

Section 3. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to furnish such
additional information as the State of Qhio may require in connection with these applications.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is authorized to accept the funds resulting from the State of Ohio financial
assistance programs.

Section 5. That, in the absence of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer the Acting

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is
hereby authorized to perform any and all of the above-described functions.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted: June 28, 2022

President

Altest:

Saecretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev, Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong @:}

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer i
Date: June 23, 2022
Subject: Medina Agreement
At the June 28, 2022, Board Meeting the Board will be asked to act on a resolution
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an agreement with
Medina County to exchange $600,000 in Section 5307 funds for local dollars. These are
funds from 2021 and 2022 which were allocated to Medina County Public Transit ("MCPT").

MCPFT is in need of aperating funds and has requested GCRTA to accept the funds on their
behalf as capital dollars in exchange for local dollars.

MCPT has agreed to pay a portion of the cost of the Route 251 Flyer in the amount of
$60,000 for 2022, which will be deducted from the payment to MCPT,

This is an annual fransaction which has been approved by the FTA

Please contact me at 216-356-3100 if you have guestions or require additional information prior
to Tuesday's meeting.

ILB:cw



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 N 2000000

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MEDINA
COUNTY TO EXCHANGE OPERATING FUNDS FOR MEDINA COUNTY'S
GRANT FUNDS AND TO PROVIDE FOR MEDINA COUNTY TO FUND A
PORTION OF THE COST OF THE AUTHORITY'S 2561 FLYER ROUTE

Resolution No.:
202261

Drate:
June 23, 2002

Initiator: Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval 1 Review/Comment () Information Only i Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
50

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOQSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an agreement between Medina County and
GCRTA to exchange capital funds allocated to Medina County Public Transit("MCPT") under
Section 5307 of Title 49 of the United States Code for operating funds. The agresment will
also provide for Medina to fund a portion of the cost of the Authority's 251 Flyer Route.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This resolution will authorize the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to enter in an agreement with Medina County to exchange a portion of
MCPT's Section 5307 capital funds for local dollars. These are funds allocated by the Federal
Transit Administration ("FTA") to MCPT in 2022 totaling $600,000.00. MCPT has requested
this exchange because its need for operating funds outweighs its need for capital funds. The
agreement also states that $60,000.00 will be deducted from the transfer to MCPT to pay for a
portion of the cost of the 251 Flyer route for 2022.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does Not Apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Doeas Not Apply.
POLICY IMPACT: Does Not Apply

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The economic impact on GCRTA will be an increase of $600,000 in
Federal Funds to the RTA Development Fund and a $540,000 decrease in the RTA Operating
Fund, Department 43 Pass Thru Account

ALTERNATIVES: The GCRTA could reject MCPT's request and risk losing the use of these
funds in the Cleveland Urbanized Area due to MCPT's inability to use these funds for capital

expenditures,

RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that this resolution be adopted to ensure that the
Cleveland Urbanized Area does not forfeit these funds.

ATTACHMENTS: Draft agreement with Medina County.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availahility of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

PPPPP
Sy -
T
fl o

-
o
e __‘:':;: - | - _mf/)"
’ o e e 7 -
‘J&Wﬁ e Lo

4
.




DRAFT

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND
BOARD OF MEDINA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR EXCHANGE OF
FUNDS

THiIS AGREEMENT, entered into as of this day of , 2022 by and
between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (hereinafter the "Authority”
or "GCRTA"), having an office located at 1240 West 6" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113 and the
Board of Medina County Commissioners, (hereinafter "Grantee"} whose business address is
144 N. Broadway St., Medina, Ohio 44256 (collectively, the "Parties”).

WITNESSETH: THAT

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") apportions funds each year to
urbanized areas in Ohio under Section 5307 of Title 49 of the United States Code ("Section
5307") based on their transit and other data; and

WHEREAS, transit systems have three years to obligate their apportioned funds or
the funds will lapse and return to FTA; and

WHEREAS, Medina County Public Transit ("MCPT") is a public transit system operated
by Grantee; and

WHEREAS, FTA apportioned Section 5307 funds for FFY 2022 to MCPT but MCPT will
not be able to utilize all of these funds: and

WHEREAS, MCPT has a need for operating funds, but FTA funds apportioned fo large
urbanized areas cannot be used by any transit system for operating expenses; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA can arrange to accept Section 5307 funds from FTA on bebalf of
MCPT and supply local dollars in exchange for those funds; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA has agreed to supply local dollars to MCPT in exchange for the
Section 5307 funds from FTA; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA is providing 12 months of transportation services known as the
251 flyer ("Transportation Services™ from January 1, 2022 through Decemnber 31, 2022, for
a tolal cost of $60,000.00; and

WHEREAS, Grantee wishes to have GCRTA provide the Transportation Services for
calendar year 2022; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA is willing to provide and Grantee is willing to pay for the
Transportation Services during calendar year 2022 at the rate of $5,000.00 per month,
totaling $60,000 for 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cavenants hereinafter set forth, this
Agreement is made to set forth the terms and conditions upon which GCRTA will accept Section



5307 funds from FTA on behalf of Grantee and disburse local dollars ("Operating Funds") to
Grantee and the terms and conditions under which Grantge will use the Operating Funds.

SECTION 1: Based upon mutual consent between the Grantee and GCRTA, GCRTA
will apply for and accept Six Hundred Thousand Doliars ($600,000.00) of 2022 Section 5307
funds on behalf of Grantee. GCRTA agrees to administer the federal funds pursuant to and in
accordance with the terms of the applicable FTA grant agreement and conditions and within its
capital program.

SECTION 2: Upon receipt of the Section 5307 funds from FTA, GCRTA will transfer
Five Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($540,000.00) in Operating Funds to Grantee, which is
the Six Hundred Thousand Doliars ($600,000.00) requested less Sixty Thousand Dollars
($60,000.00) for Transportation Services to be provided during 2022,

SECTION 3: The Grantee agrees to use the Operating Funds only for the purpose of
public transportation.

SECTION 4: The Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the Parties hereto, that there are no agreements or understandings, implied or
expressed, except as specifically set forth below, and that all prior agreements and
understandings are merged into and contained in this Agreement.

SECTION 5: The Grantee shall be responsible for and hold GCRTA harmless from and
against all findings for recovery issued by FTA or any other agency of competent jurisdiction,
and any and all other claims, actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages, losses
and expenses related to the application and/or disbursement of funds on behalf of Grantee
under this Agreement or any misappropriation or use of the Operating Funds that is not in
accordance with the terms of this agreement up to the total sum of funds transferred pursuant o
this Agreement.

SECTION 6: All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient
if given in writing, delivered in person, delivered by bonded delivery service or sent by
registered or certified mall, postage prepaid, and in any case addressed to the
respective party at its postal address or at such other address or addresses each may
hereafter designate in writing. Notices sent by delivery service or commercial catrier
shall be deemed effective and complete at the time of acceptance by delivery service or
posting in accordance herewith. Notice shall be delivered or mailed to the parties at the
addresses below:

Board of Medina County Commissioners  Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

Authority
Shannon Rine India L. Birdsong
Director, Medina County Public Transit General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
6094 Wedgewood Rd. 1240 West 6% Street
Medina, Ohio 44256 Cieveland, Qhio 441113

With a copy to the Deputy General
Manager for Legal Affairs



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, hereto have caused this Agreement to be made,
effective as of the _dayof . 2022, by their respective duly authorized
officials.

Board of Medina County Commissioners

Stephen D. Hambley
President of the Board

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

India L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND
CORRECTNESS:

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal
Affairs



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-61

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MEDINA COUNTY TO EXCHANGE
OPERATING FUNDS FOR MEDINA COUNTY'S GRANT FUNDS AND TO
PROVIDE FOR MEDINA COUNTY TO FUND A PORTION OF THE COST OF
THE AUTHORITY'S 251 FLYER ROQUTE

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (“FTA") apporticns funds each year to the
urban transit systemns in Ohio under Section 5307 of Title 49 of the United States Code
("Section 5307"), based on their transit data; and

WHEREAS, Medina County operates Medina County Public Transit ("MCPT"), an urban
public transit system; and

WHEREAS, Medina County is in nead of operating funds and as a large urbanized
transit system under the Cleveland urbanized area, cannot use its federal funds for operating
expenses; and

WHEREAS, Medina County has asked GCRTA to apply for and accept a portion of its
share of federal Section 5307 capital funds and disburse operating funds to Medina County for
fiscal year 2022 and to consider continuing this practice into the future; and

WHEREAS, Medina County wishes to have GCRTA provide transportation services
known as the 251 Flyer route during 2022; and

WHEREAS, Madina County is willing to provide a portion of the cost of operating the
Authority's 251 Flyer route; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is willing to enter into an agreement with Medina County that
provides for the Authority to apply for and accept a portion of Madina County's share of federal
Section 5307 capital funds and disburse operating funds to Medina County for FFY 2022 and for
Medina County to provide a share of the funding for the Authority's 251 Flyer route for fiscal
year 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOQLVED by the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute an agreement with Medina County providing for (1) the Authority to apply for and
accept a portion of Medina County’s share of federal Section 5307 capital funds and disburse
operating funds (“Local Funds”) to Medina County for fiscal year 2022; and (2) Medina County
to provide a share of the funding for the Authority's 251 Flyer route for fiscal year 2022,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
apply for a portion of Medina County's share of federal Section 5307 capital funds, use the
federal funds in its capital program and disburse an equal amount, less Medina County's share
of the funding for the Authority’s 251 Fiyer route, in Local Funds to Medina County.



Resolution No. 2022-61
Page 2

Section 3. That Medina County shall use the Local Funds only for the purpose of public
transportation and shall be responsible for and hold the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority harmiess for any claims relating to the exchange of funds or misappropriation of the
Local Funds. The economic impact on GCRTA will be an increase of $3800,000 in federal funds
to the RTA Development Fund and a $540,000 decrease in the RTA General Fund, Department
43 Pass Thru Account.

Section 4. That this resolution is effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adcopted: June 28, 2022

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



THE sy

AEFIRFLE

KUFGOT XESEE BTEYXLSET 5§ HRRTeT 5 so0oo Pietres] LeeeawEss] 5 EULTSEIEY 5 FRSELE 5

WIGEr XILE SIEFTLE Y 06X TS6 b SEENIEGY %D0'EZ [ ] [ti679% €] el TGRS

=a0d - - - [ - =T B - - H -

WHEE - TEFERETH - 5 T2¥ERL'IE _oo0 - - %

xoba - |51 EEs gt S31'E63'9E ¥ - HOUG |99V BB 9E; 551'B695E %

woaa - - - H - RO - - - % .

59 - =] BISELT 5 SiRRT ST REVEY 507t 50 5 {BTE¥

BOE - - - 5 - HOFT - - . 5 -

BOO0 - 145965 T £k LSA'EE'L 5 - HOLTE drsa'asT'el ESHESTE 5 -

BEST - S5¥'ZE0'9 £E0'TS 5 wRY'ELT %IGET - BPI'RED"D BIER + Isg'apry

BEFD REB'ET ESR'DTT TTIBEL 5 SBE'E06 XA 106k} el sst SEQ'ATT 5 WToE

el BREST SE9'SER [ HTH HEFD wEEE [ T [

¥ 0 HEE'Z9 BRULE s LT'pIl WG YEFED ERl' SEE'DT 5 BESAT

S0 - £96'E8 1ETEF 4 pep'snl ®IZ'0 - UPE'LS BES'E % JpEES

A 1xa9°eE] iteR'el BLEBE 5 EEBRTl WEDD TES'LT wH's 3 PSLBT

L e KES'Pa BES'TIT 10 592 5 BISUEL R - - - 5 -

wI8E - HS'GLE'T SN LLE 5 i5s'Tses =0z 4 IsEEs] 3344 SHL'SE +  BEE'FS

EEEET %0407 1118 LEETETTE NEB'ETIHR HEE"LE WIE'S YEE'SIE HECENE'T IH5'RATET

HKEFEF HALOT LS ER'S LFELEtE s ERETEGE %B6'L [P SHEIR STLPATAT 5 TETeLIEE

#IEs WO EL SSTERT SLvlT ST PO HIFE RIBEL GES LTS THEL'T TPESRTT

KEIT HEETE S5O0 HT'ree'T 5 ISUEETE BT EELTE F4LET SEESRE % BEISS¥

%69 - T g86'91r 3 HETERT HFET - il fa HHFTLT 5 EETIE

%09 %5 bEF [ETTzTes EcTaEc] 5 #SESOE B Croack 106 T'sEl sTL'0s 8 FEOST

NFEY whbeT 59T°5EE EAFSIET 5  BENMELT BIre A TR 954'gBT TST95F 5 LSEs

KT %It 91 AEL'LAE'E s CE0'bea'E §  %Est %0L1T DIE'TR 5 ad'ead 5 IO97TRL %
TS 40 % ABNYHI% ERECTTTT ak GEX TLGL2D % EETTe ) ERTETETY H HUNGIN HERD
1NISHND 1R0Z rzoT FLETET:E HAKDIEA ANTHurD

TEUE TTE AV QNG TI0E T AVIN Q3083 0T 3HE HOd
GRNA WHINIS - W34 BOREA L O3WVHN 0D CENITITE HEWD 40 EHOE3E
ALMOHETY LISH TN DEDAE ONWTRNTS HRUYIHS EHL

Boday ard=may

ONE THENES - JIRE)FH HEWD Twidl

HERF I SO HIHD GHY SLMIMISHATWEY YWEGLANS
ANFRITIABANEE BT HEUTTOM, * INEC LA LG
dEIYHI0aE
YWSEND TYHIAAF
A0 5308 Trdanas
SLEIDZH LTI
FINYISISEY DNLLYH3S0 TYHIO3

[GEREw TWIOT ‘22018 "WYIQ33] TINVEILNIY I IALIATNS

[FE2EYPE 0T "31V1E “53035] LNIWIATHASKITR INVHS
SUNMS3H VL INVAOHA N 13
30 CELFE] El

IOREATE LD TELOLENS
HIHLO
BHCOKE 25BN
AL TVLINIY
SHOISSIPRNCT S5 SAHSHE DRIKEYN
SNOISEEAINOHNENOISSOND HONISLLYING
TFEEE BT

FEEGITENS WU YHIGD THL01RAT
XYL I RS
AR Sl valadeh

SIHYd HIDNISIWE TYLQUARS
ONILTOHL TIRare
S5
SOOI 200015 - D50
STWE BIARESS ST
Auird HEw:

EE I ELTE [

AR



TioT adre

J—— e e

T 3R] SPRES 5 BFCEEFEOT 5 LISt $ oo WL SIS 5 STORELET TEVS6S T

RIEEY KLTL LLETE'S SIEPTE SR FEEENEEE KDAEL STEGELY TITCEF EEEESET

0D - - - - T - - -

%O6'5E I SE0TE TZFEEEIE CEEERTTH KO0 13 5= g o] SEEESLT

R00°0 - - - - BOT - -

L] - - - WO - - - .

XIS SC¥EFA SOFEHYT il #5106 Raf'd 10T LGTER GOGTY

5300 - - - HOGT - - - -

D legoet: - 0C00H ] - - -

WEE'T - FEXESLS FEXELL DCOIZE HIFTT - IS6°086™ L9635 UriE]

M5k [%ew et IsTeTESt 596805 oo TER'T BEZL: e1esel |3 YA #4T'ea DO GRT

PAPAT PR - I IGHY TEOE UG EH i TTOE

KITT G EE 517Ts9 YT CLYOEST KEEY [XOE'ST [ GETEST [T

Hso'n [C3=TH] LLTHTT AuFase 0T [CYo] ¥ oTTr BESET GOODEL

530 %0255l BEY T BO0°09T ®IET SATEL 02601 OFE'ES Lol sy

= EROL HBR'DZT D00'p0T S H4LED 25 LTy 0 Bood

H“EED [ 1] GZE'LAT L0041 6001 - : - -

%iz0 - [0 ¥55'TSST D00'59E EAh ] B55'TS H55'PS DHFE

WHLEY %A5'E [ BZRETOIOT H90'YEN'ES B LY KET'E THS'S ZBS'ELTHT TOHPEH'LT

HESER KETER BEEIRE L BIREIO T [T %6609 KFTE THS9LS THSGCT'AT THIE0% LT

HiEs HAET ES0'THL'T 65 BOET BEFIR'S wIFd RLEST SBE'LSF TFEERLT ESETELT

LT RILED 9P 1AIE T IFUEISS HALT *E0T =5 55055k 2005k

%IETD - ALER0ET AT £ e ] L T - PRTPE O TrE -

®Iz'0 - FSEELE PEESOR COO'TE L] BT FE'E S -k H

ReET [HOCET) (5TLT5F) SV OELT LEEETEE HEFE f%zesh [se'st] Fi- s ] AEE'TRY

w20l B ET ZUTFRE S IR §  BoOTSEE + ommsT RELCTT TOAw] 5 IAIEL 030958
RIOL 30 % AHHIN TINVIEA oL 1320ME Ls 0L 4G % AN HIN FINETHYA HLNGHE HLMCE
ANFHEMD 241 22 EEEnD LEETHHRD AT

ET0Z "EE Ao 30N CHIEHTd JHL UM
ONFe TYYINED - 1320048 CULOTYVENOT GIAIIIFE HEVI 50 LUOdaE
ALHGHLY LISKEEL THSI0ISEE SNTIIATT HHvTeD TH1

woday arisaal

GNMNE TS - GIAEITY HOWD TeA0l

WD 40 SEOUAOE SHED ANY SINIINIFHOENIEY TWECIENS
EMIAERINBAEY H1 KELATHM ~ TNDONA LG
dE WHINAE
WSiEHD WHI03S
1¢ SIHYD THHITAZ
S T0Td SROTNITIAIS N
TINGEEI55Y DNLLY S0 Y303
[HOEWE 70007 “Fhvds "oiI03s] TINGHILNOAN JALLNAAT S
[FEIENW S0 '35 “Tega034] INIMESHOGIY A3vED
SONNAF XL INYSOHSNYE0

G s LR F T [ E D Ry DA F N s T T

BT HIMLD TVECLERS
HEED
i =enl L FEEES]
Lo TriRTE
SHLESSINNDD S53 T SLHDIN NI
SMCES RN OOVS N OIS TN OO SRISEL 1A
FET [T R [ Err )

SFO0IFAAS DNLEYHA0 LOEANS
ELEELDR-S )0
BE [N o]

SIHY BINRISSY A TVLOLRIN
DNLLEEILL FlldCe
W1
SOUYIANYS ENIONLS - G5
5TI%S LTAHL S s5%d
v ke

SIT IEONISIYS

ARV



BELUESS 2707 LBy 1aubiy {1 0L 20'RE) Bl ey
1eny 1207 ueyl Jeubiy (0r5'5 2L 1$) SEODL
ala

3jeLUIRSa ZZ0Z U UBy BYBI (5:0000°LS) %LE Y
feny 20z sunf uey saybny {09 For L4 %069

o
AuewuIng
TST'ZOLCTIS  OSU'SBE'ZPIS BRI LPTBLTS BOYIrLOIZd WLOL
‘rPBessES [ GEL CEEocs §50'Z8T'8LS ¥IEWIDI
LIESTOIS | ESF'OTC0ES £0E'3BOTLLS HISHIAON
POT'OTE'LIS | GREOERIES LOT'0L5'BLE HIROLOOD
IZEGLETES | G6T'R/EIES £5T'T59'sLE HIBWI LIS
BEO'ESE'IZE | BOEESETS 9ZL'ZES LS LSnsny
PHE'1EL1ES | 285004 0ES BEE'PIEELS ERity
WLE L SECOL ] ZSTEOLEZIS | SIZ'GLOPLLS ZROSEFEZLIS  BOLESHSOLS %ily W06 ] PIF'ELOTES | SPE'RCUIZS | rO0vIZERS val'oEE'gLE 3NOr
SHEGH wHL0L | BESETOIOIS | ME'GRL'SES  BIOTIEIEE  9i6°0ELBES WkEg SBLEE  §2ZRS'SLEBLE ] 10060918 | sEoTREiLS ZOL'eez'sLE At
HERH WEGTI | WTPERZEE | BOTUTFGIS  ZEUSMA'EIE  LEEER S 06"L %S00 | STFBIFELE | £00UELLS | ERELEZGLS SOF'COMALS Ty
%07 L %ISEL | ZZFPOE'PEE | ZOMDOEESE  GEOUSEJSS  SOFESEVSS WIOEL %3TSL | LPBLTSETS  GU8'AL0 T8 | L8TFDSGER LiF'ELE' e IR
WIEE WALEL ] LBUSPS'OPE | EZE'EZZUES  COD'SSYISES  BESES.0ES E ] WEL'S | FEO'E50'6LE | rRE'IrTELE | BOCZEELS $OE G BLE Advrgead
%l ae %ZAEL [ ISLPREOES | 6B50SEEIS  PELOMSMIS  PELECTELS HLaoL WEFEL | SSLPRS0TS | e9s'0RE'ELS | pSimigmis YEOEDE'BLE AT
SONYIEYA  SORVHD WLV EFC{TITE LoV WY SIVmESS  JONWHS | TWOlow SIVIRIEST TLOF WL GETNERER]
iSI% {14 % OLA 202 QLA QLA QLA aLs ATHINOW LZEZ % HENOR zzoz zz0z bZ0T 0202 HINCHK
ZZOZ  SNSN3AAZZOL 7202 zzOE 1262 0z0Z SNISHIA WLIY 202
ATHLHOK snsu3A
FZOT 2T0Z

ZZ0Z NN HOINOXHHL SLHE2TH T¥ALDY
SZUVL IS ANV STTVS
ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOISIH GNYI3ATTO Y3 lvaNug



z 4o | abieg

%380 0% BALGLELS JMNNd NOISNId T¥LOL
%80 L % [1e jou R o b L GIHG 40 31vis OHHO U¥1Ss £eGeiLra CLOZAESS
“%GED L o 0iF'res b HNYE ATH HI3 A rATAL L CE0TILES ONOd NOISHNId
Wik BOZ'ELS BLL'EL0LELS QN HOLWIN TY20T VL0
WEET b 0% tEE 10LE 3 A A Y33 ATN-NIBYE HOLYD LZ0ZiLe ZZ0ENES
YSED L 0% BZ5'05E% b HNYE ATH HIT-ENTHD eehef g EZOTIIEMS
WET D L o8 SRZ'ELYE L HMYE ATH H03 ASH-HOLVH YO0 ZEQELID CEOTILES
%%30E 5401 FEE'5S 01l /BE6S £80 SV I0SHEN 133108 JWIHL SZOEELS ETOTEIS
W"0O'E Zlol LA A G e n&c SN0 134118 9344 SEOEIE  EEZ0ELE
o8g it 51015 AN 9¥5 SV I00IN 134118 g1H4 PEGERELIS  CE0EBTE
YeBE0 b 0% GFLBLRELES 8 QIHC 40 31L¥LS OIHO d91S-HDAYW 1007 AR EEOT/LLIG

ORNS H2EYIN 20T
prA SPL'S51% ONOA LNFWIIH0EINT YT TYLO0L
BED k 0s L0L'¥FE 5 Ol 45 ALYLS OIHO YYES CEQEIHG  ETOEALEIS
TSE'Q L 0s BEQ'SELE i dIEMI-HNYE A3H LHIAIOHOINS AN CElZe ZEGEFLES QNN INIWITHDENT M
%EEQ 0% Pee'seL g TN FINVYHNSNT TVL0L
TSE'D L 0z 08Z'css S HEWYE ADH 233 A3H EE0ZIIG  ZIGEILEIS
B0 L ng L1 RNANEE S 1 QIHO 40 31¥LS QIRO ¥Yis CE02fWS ZEGE/LES

QMN4 AONYHNSNI

YL6D dTB'GLE ZES'EPE A6S ONS TYHINIS TELOL
YeSE0 L 0% 855'994° 118 i HANYE AT H33 ASH CEUEHG  ZEOTILEIS
HE0D b 0% 22T k5o 3 HANYE NOLSMNINOH ANMOI0W XYL S3TWS ZE0EIS  TEOCILES
W%ETO b 0% ZEL'LES i ANYE ONdg ANAOSOY AQCISND Did eZ0ZMIS  ZZOTILEIS
WETD L 0% B PES S HMNYE ADM QMNA ALALLDY Z34077dW3 eClefHis Z2OTLES
B0 - 0% CEO'RBOTLGE : OIHO 40 31YLS TR0 ¥vis EEDZIG  ETOZILENS
%RELE g0l SRl 0GO'000°6% S8Cl SAYVIO3IN 134ILS H1HA SZOEIEES TEOZIETS
%00E 8501 052'64 0C0'D0o'es SE SOYIODIN 1341ES 81H4 SCOC/EEN CODERIF
g BLE 00F'ZLE Q00'000°ES SH0 SNYI0DIN 1341L8 B1Hd SENENEN TTOETILN
SeO50 LG8 QZ8'TES S84 PBE TS 5a0 SOV IODIN 1341LS | YEOZ/BIZL  LEZGEBITE
HBLD 268 TPELZE BOG'SE8' 7S Ss0H SOYIOSIN T341LS AMNISY3IHL B5A FEGEGLA L 1E0DGHEL
FUTERG 0s8 St8'Z8 o0'onoes SE0 SHVIODIN 13AILS B1HA FZOEAES  L20Z/0EE
FeTAY 6e8 £5L'es 005" 168" S Ga0 SOOI 134118 2244 FelZiie LEDEIE
YEET L 0% EZErIES 3 HMYY A3H LAWW AZH- 100V LINYHOHIW  ZZ0ZMA/S  Z20ULES O TYH3INID
i 0% CO0'BaF LS OGNS ANFWIHIIIH GNOE TRLOL
e | o D00'80F LS 3 MNYE NOIDMILNAH LA ASNOW CZOZIG  ZEOEILES ONME LN3W=HIL I ONGE
Qi3iA ALENLYWM LSSHILNI IVdISNEEd  SAVQ NOELNELLSNI ANINNHLEM =R 31¥a aNnd
IDVHIAY QL SAVO OINHI0Y WLl W3l ALMNEYIN ISYHIUND
JOVHIAY

ZZ0Z "LE AVIN 30 SY
SINIJWLSIANI AUNSYIHL 40 AHOINIAN!
ALIBOHLOY LISNVHL TYNCIOIY GNVIZAZID d3LY3uD



WSOk

W%EL L
TS0
ShEE0
140
WELZ
tli'E
YateE
%00
%SE'L

WETL

WFED

HEED
B TA R
%EFQ
G0l L
YHSB'E
HhEEE
Sl
%5l

318

P

ks 4
B¥OL
FASY
ELE

¥e
4]
GGE
giB
QBE
org
414

i

1

058'791%
0L6'5Z$

38 &

FETS
BOE'ZS
F1EAFAR
AT
1ppLE

L

£5cs
LIG'LS
CO6'EE
¥55'GE
Fa1'se
GEo'os
6o0'0L%
0%

#:

GIElA  ALHNLIYI LSIEIIN
FOVHIAY QL sSAVd QaANHIDY

AOVHIAY

0589'85/'59¢%

SET SO0
SE0OEY OIS
199'55ES
80L'141'C%
ZIE1EE'YS
§01'2Z6'FS
o00 000 5%
vBESL9'PE
COB 146 ¥8

YR LOL'508

T osLeevs

G0o'000'2S
GOC'000'2%
GO3000'sS
Sig'ohe'is
GIE'Gra'ES
851 HE6'YS
579'6%
(ras ARG

Tl
WI0LE

— —

992
0L
5601
919
gl

S60L
5601
SE0:
601
Po¥
£L6
ElG

L

I

SAYO
i E2R

Z jo ¢ afieg

OHHD 40 31viS CHHO HY1S
HNYE A3 H23 AZH
HMMYY ONd LNNCOIY ACCLSND DMd
S3ILEHNIZS 0113 d2 SN LN
SAILIKEMI2S 401 THH S0 HMNYSONYT H3AYE
SNYION T3-4H18 1M
S3ILENIZS SOLTHH S1ON AHNSYIHL SN
SIAILHMTIES S04T77H FLON AHNSYWIHL SN
SOYIOIN 1418 RN
SNVIOMN T341S 2344
SN0 734118 g4
SNYI0IN F9-4H18 HiH4
SNV IOHN 1341S giH4
SNY 03N TI3HIS FIH4
S3ILEHNIS3S SQLTIH S1ON AUNSYIHL SN
HMMYE JIMd LHNCO3Y AQOLSMD DIhd
HMNYE ASM HIZ A3
KOLLALELSNI SNIWNHLSNE
ZZ0Z ‘LS AYIN H0O SY

SLNIWISIANI AdNSVIHL 40 AMOLNIANI

SCOE/LIS  LEZOENiES
CEQTI LIS ETOTIES
ZECE LG CEOEress
EZ0ZILEfE  Ze0Eneit
CE0EFLLIE  CROEETS
SLOeiviy  2Z0EivLiE
EE0TIORILL  ZEOLELRE
FAL ALY A A AT
PECDIFIE LEGEIRIE
FEOESY LEOZIGH
FEOTIORIG  1Z0TH0TE
vEGerogrs 1Z0deee
FLOZMREIE  ZEOZBE/E
YEOEMSEIE  ZZOESSE/E
FEOZMOCIy  CZOES
ZEOEILID ELNEFLESS
LEBLIE CEOESL TG
3iva 3Iiva

ALENLIYIR ISYHIHND

ALIHOHLNY LISNYHL TVNCIOZEY GNVIZAZ IO H31v3yD

SUNNL TV IWLOL
ONNS FAHIETY TVLOL

dNMN3 IALHISIY

ONOSF TVLIVD ViH TViIOL

QRN T¥1dYD vid
N4



EBE'PYLS

000°80% LS

I Elaiey puog

00T00L°eA8 LLS S 00°0SE PO DLS | ODTODU'SES'ES  OO'DSE'SSLLE | 00°058'691°LS | noos DOOSE'E0L' 1S OO 000'0SY Irs
005 LSS DOOSLGLAE'E 00 oo oo L 009847 Co054'542 oo 0095812 OOCO0'0ED L
0352003 OCGEZSLBE'L DO OGO GEL'L J0SZYE0E CO'S2g'eaE oGG J0'SEYZ0E ooano'sol’e
00064 Zal'Y DOGLE'B0'F COGO0'028'E 00'SFE°08F BOGLE'ERP Goo 00'S2E'98p O CH0'SSYBL
Q0058628 OO Gie'ZRa'L COD0O'GES L OGSy LvE OGP Pl oo 00'S2 P irL 00Q00°545°9
Q0052 'B6E'T OOSEL'EYE'R DO GDO'SRE'E O0GZL° LG COSEL'4S ocG 00821 '4G 0000 'S8EE
ZE0T EZOTILITL TTOTILRTL ELOEZILIEE €CUTIEY 0TS ETOESErS LZOEIHIEE
juatiannbay | puowannbay m jageied Blaefied fAusiadmbay Bqefed [Brgeied Bupumsing
193] 1Blol 2313 1g8] m ledpotig 1szlauf JALALBG 1020 jedisuiag IsadEy [ediould tejoy

Z20Z “LE AV HO SY
SNLYLS ANY IINAIHIS 301AM3AS 183G

ALIHOHLNY LISNVEL TYNOIDIY ANYIZAT IO 63 1V3ND

palinboy opIsy 185 AFIIUOW

{220z Jo) apisy 193] soueeg wslnD

UEDZ 280
LZ0Z 230
9z0Z 933
SE0Z 990
Z20Z 330
ajen
Aunyely
E= R

SPUOE [eI0 L
"nay XB1 SSIES-BL0T SeUSg
"wey XB1 S9|ES-93 07 SaUsS
"2y Xe] SSIBS-GL0Z SSUSS

ey XEL SB(ES-Yri0Z sousg

“ASY XBL STIES-TL0T Saueg
SpUoE



%ES D %PZ0
FCTAL %rFe0 5880
%00 %510 %ird
%100 %900 S%lLd
%100 WE00 SEld
%00 FANERY %E10
109 %S00 %EL0
%l0a WEG0 %510
%00 WECD %EB10
%i0q %900 %OZ'0
%l00 ECTALRE YOED
Wlom %3G 0 %ZZ0
Yl WECG YlE0
%00 EH Y KA
#OT3EA #O131A QA
L3HYEVIN OHVYONYLS I9vHIAY

LE0Z

LAG'RCOES

CCO'5ES
L2GAZ8
655888
ZLE'0ps
¥LI'LES
259'0E%
80E'1L5%
GEG'ZES
BEC'IES
TERIES
£a8'6ct
PPESEE
ERTE!
ISIHIIM

TYL'SRIPeLE

¥es 'BEZ'ZOZE
2L oe'sege
£8l'ss8'cies
GHL'GZETLTE
EL'95EErES
BBO'8R.L 95T
BLEYIOLGTS
8.9'786°1523
0468'089'922%
295" LOLEEES
LIEBIGLYES
L51'C1B'AYZS
ANV IVE
SOYHIAY

8L HEXD
WD YadtD
$e05 0 %B80
YBLT WHETO
%l 'O %TP 0
i d0 p A
YO 9L 0
#7304 #OTAA
LIMUYRA TuVONYLS

%050

e
%%BSd
TERP O
WHELD
LY
aTaA

IOVHIAY
T

ZZ0T “}E AV HDONOYHL 31va OL ¥v3A
FONVINHOIHAL INTIMLSTANE 40 AYYININNS

ALRIOHLNY LISNVEL TYNOIDTY CNYTIAT IO 831V IHD

piaed, Aeg] f pung Asuoyy funseal] g sieabe pisls owep #

"SiIg Anseal | WUow o oy SpISd JuRlEAnDs uodnos sbermne Suop #

XIAN {HIANN) H3A0 SOTT1A IOVHEAY VIY

S12'6E58

590'c8TE
B0S'50L%
FBE YOS
08P
JOETIES
QdNuvd

LSTHIENI

LDS'EROLLE

BZE'vER 1528
CH'SPSEIEE
¥50'ZER'SOTS
BRY'SST'EIRS
LGP FiZE
ITNVIVE
ADVHIAY

31¥0 &1 1Y3A

H3AN35340

HIATWIA0N

H3IEC100

4383438

1SMSNY

AT

INH

AN

Rit-I-14

HIHwA

AdYTIHEI

AN
HIMOW



95'9L%

0E'g9s

T
B2 62%
LO'LS

ZYELGELS
8Ti8v'es
10°902°58

i mime——————

FOBOCSE

ST 1LLERE
¥5'8.0°9048
02 0v6'65%

B9es
E5HELS
68720i%
003s4'81%
L1 ¥SE'0pS
00¢s

LZvees

PLEZ9ES

OF'EPETS
96¥5%
05'48L'C

JEV0 0L d¥3A 1202
3190 O HY3A Z20E
CZOT AvIN

FEvd 01 Uv3A LE0T
WO OL UY3A 2262
20T AV

FLVO O1 "UY3A L2062
390 O1 ¥v3A 2202
2200 AVIN

Y0 01 YUv3A L2oT
JE¥J Ol UvdA 2202
el AVIN

£ 10| sfeg

20T AV

CIHCUYLS
INNODOY d33MS HMNVE ATH
ONAd INIWSOHOSNT MY

OIHOYYIS
ONOAd JONYENSHI

INNODJV dIAIAS HNVE ASXM-LNNODOY LNYHDHEIW
INMOOOY AGOLSND ONd

INNOITY d33ME HNYE AT

SE10N AHNSYIHL SN

OIHOYVLS

LNNOIOY XW1 SITYS-NOLDINILNNH

ANN:Z TYHINID

1 TIAEYIN ASNOW NOLONILLNAH
S3LON AHNSYIHL 8N
ONNd AINJWIEIESY ANOS

{SISYE HSVD) SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NO LHOdIY
ALIHOHLOY LISNYYL TVNCIDIY ANYTIATTO H3LyIND



£E9'80Z%
SL'e/e'ges
89'¥E0'5E
BO'E%
00°628'sS

ae'9%
85°E%
A

2493

L17SEPS
BOLEL LS
0¢'8i8%
£.°0%
8BS

Lv'BBL'BYS
10'64T¢218
LLEOZ'GLE
B9 LS
EV'G91's/8

£ o7 abey

31%0 OL Uv3A LE0T
3LV O J¥3A ZZ02
2202 Avi

HLV0 OL HvY3A LE0T
JLVA CL g¥aA 2202
£E0Z AV

J1VE L U¥3A LE0T
31¥0 OL "Hv3A €202
ZTO0Z AN

10 OL 4Y3A LZ0T
F1VJ Ol Uv3A €80T
£2ie AW

20T AVIN

AINMGIOIY £33MS HMNYE AT
g2 SMKILYN
QNN TYLIdYD Wiy

LFAE ASNOW MNYE AT
INACOOY ALIALLDY J3A0 1IN

LNAQOOOY J33AMS HNYE AT
CHOYYLS
ON NOISN3d

ANMOOOY d33MS HNYE ASM
HOLYIW TY3OT-OIHOWYLS
annd HoLWW W0

{SISVE HSYD) SONINYYI INTJWISIANI NO 1HOJTE
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOI93Y ANY1AAI D H3LYIND



%050
LO0G'BO0LLTS
L LGEsE

058'79LE
{rSs'ez18)

g1y Fors
2AIVE 0L
HY3A Z202

G 6PS ZOLS
2 LL¥'PEbe
SCLIGZETS

T8EI9'/GS
BOFE2LGLLS
19'S65ELY
ZE'LS
00°00S'ZLS
GE'856'vS
00'052'9%
00'sZE'es
00 19.L°9%%

¢ 30 ¢ abed

%E0'L
Q7S PEL L5628
990'¢928

0S8'FoLS
{95y'#0LS)

1/9'222%
AV

31v0 OL ¥WYdA LZog
Ji¥0 04 9¥3A ZToZ
CTHE AW

J1¥0 0L U¥3A LE0T
3190 OL Jdv3A 2202
ZE0Z A

2202 AVIN

SINIWLSIANI NO GT3IA SOVEIAY

{1S02) SONYTVE LNIMLSIANI IDVHIAY

GIANEYI SNOINT 18353 LNI
OMIONS

SOMINNIC3E

SLSFHFIND AINHI0Y

(S1SVE HSVD} d3AIZDTY 1SIYIEN]

SANNE 1MW VLD

LNAQOOY d33MS HNYE ASM
S3LON AHOSYIHL SN

d3 SNXILYN

HANYE TWENLINOIHOY
S53L0OM AYNSYIHL SN
OHOYYLS

aNNd 2AHSS3Y

(S1Sva HSYD) SONINYYI LNIFWLSIANI NO LHO4TY

ALTEOHLNY LISNVHL TYNCIDIH

GNYISATTO HIALYIUD



ALHRIYER
JOVHIAY

%S0
%kl )
%4070
%GLD
%E80
%5ED
%870
a13iA
A9¥HIAY

%00°0ok
%nE9LE
WBYE
%E8LE
%8085
%BEQD
%FLT
IwLGL
20 IN33H3d

516°155'99¢%
300095628
0o0'000'0L$
LPe'i08CLS
658 '8¥6'8K2S
8e0'siLs
8.8'0:9°c18
LNNCWY
Fovd

ZT0Z 'Lt AVIN SV

089°85/'59¢%
TPD'IDE64%
0Z6'cve'ss
L+9'108'CL S
BGL'8KE'8YES
BEO'S1LS
189'ZR9'ELS
TdIaNidd

ONMO41i80d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOJWNOD

OHOIHCd JUSUNSaAU] [BJC L
STJNDDG JUSLLIIBALE S0
iaded |BmasunucT)

UnNoa0y gley dpaud sbuney
ol eis

N0y daams yueg Aoy
RInoooy jexieln Aauoy
SLURASU|



"HGIIRULICIUE RECIFIPPE Joy
08-0Z0Z "ON UDIN0S3Y S3R1SNIL IO PIROG PUL FIH SIAPEI05 BANENSIUIITY TA0d Preal} Altowing Jsues) jeuo|Say puejans|d Sote2.5 a4l 5b suoiienay pue sajry PSIY0S Syl 10 955 Jadey] o3 Jagas Fseald

TEOY "LT YHEp PER ABUULN JUSH " 0F OG0 ARDS|ARY JEISUGISSIIEDT STEYTT 0D
BH-TTOZT FRQUUNKY UOIHED IKHESIILAO T SIEIT DI
QZLE "9 Ay piep (SHelfy 252 - wes0) puoguEg Tunt |ABUS 01 volud D ASEPY HEIS LOISSIMILEOT SIURT DD
T-FZTON I-E00F Jaguny UONEGD [ZLUIO0JL] UDISSIRIIo D STNRT OIS
(3} pue (@) 0 20T SUBHISS BR0T PASIARY OD
T sUR )| Euo e 2 £ SEappll aqeH|dde 20 papoad Suisy st [FleTELHTE e TLIER R

-ELON
2dpaH ans jleg s1eeH Qe
1ER5IEaY puog D31y 5G4 Map §o jueq
SRIBURSSAE-OWD By ES
IBHIMEIPUA
WNOXIY ¥E| SAES PUR JUBLRIOSE PUOS ¥ueg uoiBuguny
JURO3XY MOEIS] PR L YLE
PR3 2P DUE WNOZY LBIRDISTY queq Jhid
$EIHUSE JUIURY el jueg Aay

dSUORPI 30 BIMBN  UCHRAYHISH EnuBL Uy

TTOT “TE ARiM Jo sy
sdngsuoneEy [EnRueud pue Sunueg
Aaouiny Ysuel} [euOEEY PUBBASL] JB1E3IG



	Meeting Notice
	Audit Agenda
	Board Agenda
	Minutes
	2022-52
	2022-53
	2022-54
	2022-55
	2022-56
	2022-57
	2022-58
	2022-59
	2022-60
	2022-61
	Secretary-Treasurer's Report

